
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Graham Seal 

 
 
 

24 December 2019 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Tuesday 7 January 2020  at 7.30pm in the Council Chamber, 
Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 
2019 (previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 No questions from the public have been received for this meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 
The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CABINET  
 

 To consider recommendations from the meeting of the Cabinet on 5 November 
2019:- 
 

(a)    Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21 (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

(b)    Duty of Care Enforcement for Fly-Tipping (Pages 13 - 18) 
 

(c)    Service Standards for Regulatory Work (Pages 19 - 22) 
 

9.   MATTER ARISING FROM COMMITTEE  
 

 To consider a recommendation from the meeting of the Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 23 September 2019:- 
 

(a)    Licensing Policy (Pages 23 - 76) 
 

10.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 (Pages 77 - 78) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

11.   MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME (Pages 79 - 90) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive on the review of Members’ allowances for 
2019/20. 



 

12.   REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING 
STATIONS (Pages 91 - 94) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive and Acting Returning Officer on a review of Polling 
Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations. 
 

13.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Graham 
Seal, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 7 JANUARY 2020 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY 
MEMBERS  
 
Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 
 
1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Steven Markiewicz 
 

“You have established a housing company separate to the Council, what 
advantages do you see for the people of Welwyn Hatfield as a result.” 

 
2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Glyn Hayes 
 

“What is the Leader’s opinion on Members asking questions at full Council 
meetings, simply to elicit answers that are no more than announcements that 
could easily be made in the relevant agenda item and not take up valuable time 
open to those with genuine questions for he and his colleagues?” 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 7 JANUARY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Cabinet on 5 November 2019:- 
 
60.1 Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21 (Forward Plan Reference 

FP928) 
 
The Cabinet considered the continuation of the Council’s localised council tax 
support scheme into 2020/21. 
 
The scheme fully protected pensioners and families with children under five 
years of age as well as certain other vulnerable claimants. For others, the 
assessed entitlement was calculated on 75% of the council tax bill. 
 
Consultation had taken place with Hertfordshire County Council and the 
Hertfordshire Police and Crime Commissioner on the intention to continue with 
the same scheme and both bodies had responded in agreement. 
 
The cost of the scheme was met through the collection fund, through a 
reduction of the tax base. Based on the latest information, the cost of the 
scheme for 2019/20 was likely to be £7M across all preceptors and this was 
forecast to continue at a similar level for 2020/21. 
 
The Cabinet RECOMMENDS to the Council that the localised council tax 

support scheme continue in 2020/21 to help people on low/no income to 

receive a reduction on their council tax. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8a



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Farhad Cantel 
Executive Member: Councillor Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL  
CABINET – 5 NOVEMBER 2019  
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

LOCALISED COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME – 2020/21 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Council’s Council Tax Support Scheme replaced council tax benefits from 
April 2013.  Our scheme was based on a broad framework agreed as part of a 
consultation undertaken with Hertfordshire County Council, Hertfordshire Police 
and Crime Commissioner and other interested parties. 
 

1.2 Much of the old council tax benefits scheme was retained within our local support 
scheme and we have continued to protect pensioners, disabled claimants and 
claimants with children under five.  This was achieved by calculating council tax 
support on 75% of the council tax liability and not 100%, and this was applied to 
working age claimants.   

1.3 The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet that it is our intention in 2020/21 to 
continue with the same council tax support scheme that Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council rolled out in 2019/20.  Consultation has taken place with 
Hertfordshire County Council and Hertfordshire Police and Crime Commissioner 
on our intention to continue with the same scheme.  Both Hertfordshire County 
Council and Hertfordshire Police and Crime Commissioner have responded to 
say that they are in agreement with our approach. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Cabinet recommend to Full Council that our localised council tax support scheme 
continues in 2020/21 to help people on low/no income to receive a reduction on 
their council tax.   

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Council’s localised council tax support scheme is based on a reduction of 
25% in council tax liability whilst still protecting some vulnerable groups.  This 
means a claimant’s assessed entitlement is calculated on 75% of the council tax 
bill.   

3.2 Our scheme fully protects pensioners and families with children under 5 and 
those in receipt of Personal Independence Payments (PIP) (formerly disability 
living allowance) so that they continue to receive the same level of protection, 
and do not have to pay anymore council tax than they paid under the old council 
tax benefit system.    This protects claimants with a disability premium, severe 
disability premium, child disability and families with young children.   

Page 9



- 2 - 

3.3 Other claimants have an additional 25% to pay compared to the former council 
tax benefits scheme.   

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 came into force on 31 October 2012 
and imposed a duty on local billing authorities to introduce a localised council tax 
reduction scheme by January 2013.  The scheme aligns with Universal Credit 
and support work incentives, and avoids disincentives to move into work.  For 
pensioners there is no change in their level of awards and local authorities are 
required to consider ensuring support for other vulnerable groups. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 Based on the latest data available, the expenditure on the 2019/20 council tax 
support scheme currently stands at £7m. 

5.2 The cost of the council tax support scheme is met from within the collection fund 
through a reduced tax base.  The cost therefore has to be estimated prior to the 
setting of the tax base which will then inform the Council Tax Resolution.    

5.3 The cost of the council tax support scheme in Welwyn Hatfield for 2020/21 is 
forecast to continue at a similar level to the current year.  However, the accuracy 
of this forecast will depend on the wider economic conditions outside the 
Council’s control.      

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The key financial risk related to our council tax support scheme is the possible 
loss of council tax revenue if less well-off residents are unable to pay.  This is 
mitigated by assuming an element of non-collection within the tax base but a 
greater level of non-collection, or increase in demand for support, would need to 
be met by the major preceptors and this Council would need to find its share.  

6.2 If demand is higher than estimated the collection fund will go into deficit and if 
demand is lower than estimated this would result in a surplus.     

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications with the recommendation in this 
report.   

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are none. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The proposals in this report will not impact on greenhouse gas emissions. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are none. 

Page 10



- 3 - 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Those people who are on a means tested benefit required to meet their basic 
living needs could also be in receipt of council tax support which they require to 
meet their council tax liability.  Any changes to the council tax support they 
receive could cause financial hardship.   

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 There has been liaison with Hertfordshire County Council and the Police & Crime 
Commissioner on our council tax support scheme proposal.  

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority: Our Council 
and promoting equality and fairness.     

14 Equality and Diversity 

11.1 A full and detailed Equality Impact Assessment was carried out on the Council’s 
localised council tax support scheme.  This resulted in a focus group meeting to 
ensure that the range of impacts on different categories of claimants was 
understood and that our overall work was robust and resilient to challenge.    The 
focus group consisted of a mixture of individuals from the Borough Panel, the 
Tenants Panel (Housing Trust), the Residents Scrutiny Panel; Herts Action on 
Disability, Citizens Advice, Hertfordshire County Council’s Money Advice Unit 
and Individual’s interested in consultation on these kinds of issues.   

 
 
Name of author Farhad Cantel 
Title Client Support Services Manager 
Date October 2019 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 
 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 7 JANUARY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Cabinet on 5 November 2019:- 
 
60.2 Duty of Care Enforcement for Fly-Tipping (Forward Plan Reference FP944) 

 
The Cabinet considered a recommendation from the meeting of the 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 23 September 2019 on the 
introduction of fixed penalty notices to allow individuals to discharge liability for 
the duty of care offence related to household waste by payment of a fixed 
penalty notice. 
 
At present, the only options which were available to the Environment team 
when a breach of duty of care occurred was to prosecute, issue a simple 
caution or take no action. The introduction of a FPN would allow Officers to 
deal effectively with breaches and send out a stronger message than the 
current system allowed. 
 
The Cabinet noted the introduction of a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) to allow 
individuals to discharge liability for the duty of care offence related to 
household waste by payment of a FPN and that the Duty of Care FPN would 
be issued by current authorised officers (Community and Environment Officers 
and Street Wardens).  
 
The Cabinet RECOMMENDS to the Council:- 

 
(1) That the level of fine should be set at £300, reduced to £200 for 

early resolution (if paid within ten days).  
 
(2) That the existing level of FPN for fly tipping offences should be 

amended to £300, reduced to £200 (currently £180) for early 
resolution (if paid within ten days) to ensure that the FPN that could 
be issued for fly tipping was consistent with the FPN for duty of care 
breaches and was in line with other Authorities in Hertfordshire 
which had introduced the fixed penalty notice. 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8b



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Kirsten Roberts 
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton 
Ward: ALL 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 23 SEPTEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

INTRODUCTION OF FIXED PENALTY NOTICES FOR HOUSEHOLD WASTE DUTY 
OF CARE 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Council has powers to investigate instances of fly tipping and the 
subsequent enforcement under S.33 and S.34 of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990. 

1.2 Under Section 34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, all occupiers of 
domestic properties are required to take reasonable measures to ensure that 
waste produced on their property is only transferred to an authorised person (i.e. 
household waste duty of care). 

1.3 In January 2019, the Environmental Protection (Miscellaneous Amendments) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2018 were updated to allow a Fixed Penalty 
Notice (FPN) to be issued for offences related to household waste duty of care 
i.e. offences whereby residents breach their duty of care by not taking all 
reasonable measures available to them to ensure that their waste is disposed of 
properly, which can often result is waste being fly tipped.   

1.4 The introduction of an FPN for such breaches is an alternative to prosecution. It 
allows an individual to discharge liability for the duty of care offence by payment 
of a financial penalty. There is no obligation for the Council to offer an alleged 
offender the option to discharge liability through an FPN. However, it can be 
more proportionate than prosecution through the courts in some cases. 

1.5 In line with the regulations, an FPN can be issued in the following circumstances:  

 where fly tipped waste can be traced back to an individual who is found to have 
failed to take reasonable steps to ensure that they transferred the waste to an 
authorised person. 

 where an unauthorised carrier is found to be carrying household waste that was 
directly transferred to them by the occupier of a domestic property. 

 where an individual is found to have transferred their household waste to an 
unauthorised person at a site that does not have a permit or exemption. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members note the contents of the report and the introduction of a FPN to allow 
individuals to discharge liability for the duty of care offence by payment of a fixed 
penalty notice. 

Page 15



- 2 - 

2.2 Members to note that the Duty of Care “FPN” will be issued by current authorised 
officers (Community and Environment Officers and Street Wardens).  

2.3  Members recommend to Council that the level of fine should be set at £300, 
reduced to £200 for early resolution (if paid within 10 days).  

2.4 Members recommend to Council that  the existing level of FPN for fly tipping 
offences should be amended to £300, reduced to £200 (currently £180) for early 
resolution (if paid within 10 days). This will ensure that the FPN that can be 
issued for fly tipping is consistent with the above FPN for duty of care breaches 
and is in line with other Authorities in Hertfordshire who have introduced the fixed 
penalty notice.   

3 Explanation 

3.1 Under Section 34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, all occupiers of 
domestic properties are required to take reasonable measures to ensure that 
waste produced on their property is only transferred to an authorised person. An 
authorised person is defined in law and includes the council waste collection 
service (ie. bulky waste collection), a registered waste carrier (i.e. an authorised 
skip company) or an operator of a registered site (i.e. household waste recycling 
centre). This reduces the risk of household waste ending up in the hands of 
those who may fly tip it.   

3.2 Currently, the only options available to the Community & Environment team when 
a breach of duty of care occurs is to prosecute, issue a Simple Caution or take 
no action.  The introduction of this FPN will allow officers to deal effectively with 
low level breaches and send out a stronger message than the current system 
allows. 

3.3 Accordingly, an FPN can be issued in the following circumstances:  

 where fly tipped waste can be traced back to an individual who is found to have 
failed to take reasonable steps to ensure that they transferred the waste to an 
authorised person. 

 where an unauthorised carrier is found to be carrying household waste that was 
directly transferred to them by the occupier of a domestic property. 

 where an individual is found to have transferred their household waste to an 
unauthorised person at a site that does not have a permit or exemption. 

3.4 In all investigations of breaches of household waste duty of care, individuals will 
be given the opportunity to demonstrate they took reasonable steps to determine 
the person that took their waste was authorised to do so.  If fly-tipped waste is 
traced to an individual, and they are unable to identify who took their waste, or 
the carrier that they identify is unauthorised, then it is reasonable to believe they 
have not met their duty of care.   

3.5 Examples of evidence which can be used to demonstrate a resident met their 
duty of care could include details of business and of any vehicle used which can 
be linked to an authorised operator, a record of checks made, including operators 
registration, permit or exemption number, a receipt for the transaction which 

Page 16



- 3 - 

includes the businesses details of a registered operator, or a copy or photograph 
of the carrier’s waste license or site permit.   

 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The relevant statutory provisions are covered in the body of the report.  

4.2 All enforcement will be undertaken in line with the Council’s Enforcement Policy.  

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this recommendation.  

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no risks related to this recommendation.  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications associated with this 
recommendation. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this recommendation.  

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 Fly-tipping can have a negative impact on the climate, local communities and the 
surrounding environment. It can also be dangerous and hazardous to human 
health and animals.  

9.2 It is anticipated that the introduction of this FPN will allow further enforcement to 
be taken against individuals who breach their duty of care.  

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no human resources implications associated with this 
recommendation.  

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications associated with this 
recommendation.  

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 In line with the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy, the Community & 
Environment team will continue to provide advice and awareness around duty of 
care and fly tipping.  

12.2 Welwyn Hatfield continues to be an active member of the Hertfordshire Waste 
Partnership’s WasteAware and Fly Tipping Groups, both of which have strong 

Page 17



- 4 - 

public facing campaigns with regard to fly tipping and more general recycling and 
waste messages.   

The #SCRAPflytipping campaign (www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/flytipping) launched 
across Hertfordshire in March 2018 and is designed to ensure residents are 
aware of what fly tipping is, the penalties and where to go for more information to 
ensure proper disposal of waste.   

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority, 
Environment, and specifically to the achievement of keeping our streets clean 
and enhancing our green spaces and is linked to a statutory requirement, under 
the Environment Protection Act 1990. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1  An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 
 

 
 
Name of author Kirsten Roberts, 01707 357177  
Title Community and Environment Services Manager 
Date 02 September 2019 
 
 
 
Background papers to be listed  

 Environmental Enforcement, Report of the Director (Finance and Operations), 
Cabinet, 14 June 2016 

 Corporate Enforcement Policy https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/9449/Corporate-
enforcement-
policy/pdf/Corporate_Enforcement_Policy.pdf?m=636842737144200000 

 Guidance for local authorities on household waste duty if care fixed penalty 
notices https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-waste-duty-of-
care-fixed-penalty-notice-guidance/guidance-for-local-authorities-on-household-
waste-duty-of-care-fixed-penalty-notices 

 

 

Page 18

http://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/flytipping
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/9449/Corporate-enforcement-policy/pdf/Corporate_Enforcement_Policy.pdf?m=636842737144200000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/9449/Corporate-enforcement-policy/pdf/Corporate_Enforcement_Policy.pdf?m=636842737144200000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/9449/Corporate-enforcement-policy/pdf/Corporate_Enforcement_Policy.pdf?m=636842737144200000
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-waste-duty-of-care-fixed-penalty-notice-guidance/guidance-for-local-authorities-on-household-waste-duty-of-care-fixed-penalty-notices
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-waste-duty-of-care-fixed-penalty-notice-guidance/guidance-for-local-authorities-on-household-waste-duty-of-care-fixed-penalty-notices
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-waste-duty-of-care-fixed-penalty-notice-guidance/guidance-for-local-authorities-on-household-waste-duty-of-care-fixed-penalty-notices


Classification: Unrestricted 
 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 7 JANUARY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Cabinet on 5 November 2019:- 
 
60.3 Service Standards for Regulatory Work (Forward Plan Reference FP945) 

 
The Cabinet considered a recommendation from the meeting of the 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 23 September 2019 on the 
adoption of revised service standards for regulatory work. 
 
The standards were originally adopted in 2014 and linked with the Council’s 
corporate enforcement policy and the central government Regulators Code. In 
view of the production of the new corporate customer service strategy, it was 
timely to produce a revised set of standards. 
 
The Cabinet noted the comments received from the recent consultation, 
agreed the revised regulatory service standards and RECOMMENDS these to 
the Council for adoption. 
 
 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8c



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Joanna Harding 
Executive Member: Fiona Thomson 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 23 SEPTEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
SERVICE STANDARDS FOR REGULATORY WORK 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report informs members of the feedback received following a consultation 
that took place in respect of the proposed standards for regulatory work carried 
out by various council teams.  

1.2 These standards were originally adopted in 2014 and link with the council’s 
corporate enforcement policy and the central government Regulators Code. In 
view of the production of the new corporate customer service strategy, it is now 
timely to produce a revised set of standards. 

1.3 Recommendation(s) 

2.1  For members to note the comments received from the recent consultation and for 
the standards to be agreed and passed onwards for adoption by Full Council.  
 

2 Explanation 

3.1  The council carries out a number of regulatory and enforcement roles as 
provided by statute and is obliged to have a set of service standards for its 
designated regulatory work, across a number of service areas. In 2014 a set of 
service standards were agreed and published on the council website so that we 
met the requirements in the Regulators Code. 

 
3.2 The council is currently reviewing its customer service strategy and as such 

these regulatory service standards will feed into this review. 
 

Implications 

4.0 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The council is obliged to have due regard to the “Regulators Code” from central 
government when developing policy around its designated regulatory functions. 
One of the requirements of the code is that the council produces a set of service 
standards for regulatory work and places them on the council website. It is good 
practice, from time to time, to check that these standards remain valid. 
 

5.0 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 None directly arising from this report. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

Page 21



- 2 - 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2  Failure to produce and follow a set of regulatory service standards creates a risk 
to the council’s reputation. The council is also open to challenge and adverse 
audit findings. It is good practice to from time to time, to check that these 
standards remain valid. 

 

7. Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 None directly arising from this report 

8. Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 None directly arising from this report 

9.0 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 None directly arising from this report. 

10.0 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 None directly arising from this report 

11.0 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1    None directly arising from this report  

12.0 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1  A consultation has taken place with a range of relevant stakeholders. Once the 
final version has been agreed the new set of standards will be added to the 
Councils website. 

 

13.0 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities “our 
community”, “our environment” and “our council”, and is linked to a statutory 
requirement, the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 as amended. 

 
14.0 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to     
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
Name of author Joanna Harding 01707 357361 
Title Head of Public Health and Protection 
Date 22 August 2019 
 
 
Background papers to be listed   

Appendix 1 -  Comments received following the Consultation 

Appendix 2 – The updated Regulatory Service Standards.  

Page 22



Classification: Unrestricted 
 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 7 JANUARY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
23 September 2019:- 
 
24 Licensing Policy 

 
The Cabinet considered the results of the consultation on the revised Licensing 
Policy and proposed changes as discussed at the meeting of the Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 23 September 2019. 
 
Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Council was required to revise and consult 
on its Licensing Policy and two responses had been received. 
 
The first was from the British Beer and Pub Association which requested a few 
clarifications and additions. The second was from the Fire Protection service 
relating to changes in their contact details and one typographical error which 
subsequently was corrected.  
 
The Committee had considered the Officers’ suggested policy changes in 
response to the consultation and there was discussion by Members about the 
following proposed changes:  
 
Licensing Policy point 5.3 - Request to change wording from “which 
encourage people to drink more than they might ordinarily.” Requested 
sentence is changed to “The aim of the condition is to prohibit or restrict 
promotions which undermine the licensing objectives.” 
 
Some Members felt that the requested change provided much more clarity and 
was less subjective, other Members felt that it was too wordy.  It was put to the 
vote at the Committee meeting and  
 

AGREED 
(9 voting for and 3 against) 
 
That the wording for Licensing Policy point 5.3 be changed to “The aim 
of the condition is to prohibit or restrict promotions which undermine the 
licensing objectives.” 

 
Licensing Policy 38.10 - Use of the word “persistent” for underage sales 
could create confusion due to the level of subjectivity. Add a sentence referring 
to the section 182 guidance at 11.29 which refers to a proportionate approach 
rather than be too specific as each case will be different.   
 
Some Members felt that the word “persistent” could be defined as one or two 
cases, however the Officer suggestion of referring to external guidance was 
agreed by the majority of Members as it was less subjective.  
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9a



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

The Committee noted the results of the consultation, agreed all the changes 
proposed and RECOMMENDS the Council to approve the revised Licensing 
Policy. 

 
Note: Report attached.  Click link below Environment Overview and Scrutiny 

item 9 for the Appendices:- 

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=984  

 

Page 24

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=984


- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Kate Payne 
Executive Member: Fiona Thompson 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ENVIRONMENT AND OVERVIEW SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 23 SEPTEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

LICENSING POLICY REVIEW 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report informs Members that a review of our licensing policy was due under 
the Licensing Act 2003 which required us to revise and consult upon our policy. 
The agreed consultation has taken place and the responses are at Appendix 
2.This report asks members to consider and agree any proposed changes 
following the consultation and recommend the policy for onward approval by Full 
Council. 
 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 For Members to note the results of the consultation and agree any changes 
proposed to the revised policy at Appendix 1 for onward approval by Full Council. 

3 Explanation 

3.1  The council in its capacity as licensing authority for the purposes of the 
 Licensing Act 2003 is obliged by law to have a statement of licensing policy. 
 Originally such a statement had to be reviewed every 3 years, but along with a 
 number of other changes to the Licensing Act 2003 and the statutory guidance 
 this frequency has been increased to 5 years.  

3.2 During the five year period the policy must be kept under review and the 
licensing authority may make such revisions to it as it considers appropriate, for 
instance when changes have been made by Government or in the light of 
feedback from the local community on whether the statutory licensing objectives 
are being met.  

3.3 The statement of licensing policy under the Licensing Act 2003 should also be 
developed according to the licensing act guidance issued by the Department for 
Culture, Media, and Sport which was last updated in April 2018. 

3.4 The consultation has taken place and the two responses received are at 
Appendix 2 and a summary of suggested policy changes are at Appendix 3. The 
first was from the British Beer and Pub Association requesting a few clarifications 
and additions. The second from the Fire Protection service related to changes in 
their contact details and one typographical error which has been corrected. 
Those changes agreed by members will be made to the revised policy for 
adoption by Full Council. 

3.5 In considering current revision frequencies, the existing policy must be revised, 
consulted upon, and agreed by Full Council by the 20th January 2020.  

Page 25



- 2 - 

3.6 The new Guidance under the Licensing Act 2003 came into effect in April 2018 
The Licensing policy has been amended to reflect the relevant areas which had 
been addressed or clarified in the new Guidance.  

3.7 The policy has been updated and new sections introduced where appropriate to 
reflect the current guidance and to promote ease of use. Accordingly this new 
revised policy represents an update to previous policies and reflects the current 
situation and practice in Welwyn Hatfield.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The council has a duty to promote the licensing objectives, namely prevention of 
crime and disorder, maintenance of public safety, prevention of public nuisance, 
and prevention of children from harm.  

4.2 The council is at risk of legal challenge if it does not have a licensing policy in 
place, has failed to review its licensing policy or if its policy does not take account 
of the Secretary of State’s guidance issued under the Licensing Act. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 None directly arising from this report. Consultation on policy development is a 
normal part of day to day work and allowed for in existing budgets.  

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is required to have a statement of licensing 
policy made under the Licensing Act 2003 which is reviewed every 5 years or in 
light of revisions to the section 182 guidance. The council is at risk of challenge if 
it does not have such a policy in place or if it is not kept up to date.  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 The council has an overarching duty to have due regard to the need to prevent 
people being drawn into terrorism, in the context of this report, there are no 
additional concerns. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1  None arising directly from this report. 

 

9 Climate Change Implication(s)       
        

 9.1  The proposal does not imply an increase in greenhouse gas emissions or water 
 use. A limited number of paper polices will be produced as it will be made 
 available in electronic format. The proposal appears to be resilient to climate 
 change and does not require adaptations to be made. 

10 Human Resources Implications 

Page 26



- 3 - 

 
10.1   None directly arising from this report 
 
11  Health and Wellbeing Implications 

11.1 Whilst the licensing regime is concerned with the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, these objectives collectively seek to protect the quality of life for those 
who live, and work in the vicinity of licensed premises and those who socialise in 
licensed premises.  
 

12 Communication and Engagement Implications  
 

12.1   The consultation responses have been brought back for members to agree any 
changes to the policy 
 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority  
(promoting inclusiveness and safe communities and is a statutory requirement, 
under the Licensing Act 2003. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1  An EqIA was completed on the 2nd May 2019 and no negative impact was 
identified on any of the protected groups under Equalities legislation. 

 
 
Name of author Kate Payne 01707 357206 
Title Licensing Team Leader 
Date 12 August 2019 
 
 
Background papers to be listed   

Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Appendices to be listed  

Appendix 1 Draft licensing policy 2020-2025 

Appendix 2 Consultation responses 

Appendix 3 Summary of suggested alterations to the policy. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
 

Statement of Licensing Policy  
2020-2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
2 

 
As required by section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 
 
Contents Page 
Contents 2 
Executive summary 4 
 
1. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 6 
2. Purpose and scope of the policy  7 
3. Contact details 10 
4. Formulation of policy 10 
5. Conditions 11 
6. Duplication 13 
7. Partnership Working 14 
8. Interface with planning 17 
9. Decision making forums 18 
10. WHBC Licensing Committee 19 
11. WHBC Licensing subcommittee 19 
12. Scheme of delegation to officers 20 
13. Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority 20 
14. Health as a Responsible Authority 20 
15. Home Office Immigration Enforcement  20 
16. Sexual Entertainment 21 
17. Drugs 21 
18. Making an application 21 
19. Late Night Refreshment Exemptions 22 
20. Personal licences 22 
21. Designated Premises Supervisor 23 
22. Public Register 23 
23. Making a representation 23 
24. Vicinity 24 
25. Temporary Event Notices (TENS) 24 
26. Events and Events attended by over 5000 persons 25 
27. Live Music Act 26 
28. Wholesalers  26 
29. Licensing Policy Decisions 27 
30. Licensing Hours 27 
31. Variations 28 
32. Cumulative impact 28 
33. Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMRO’S) 39 
34. Late Night Levy (LNL) 30 
35. General Enforcement statement 31 
36. Copyright 32 
37. Children   32 
38. Requests for Review 34 
39. Summary Reviews                                                                  35 
40. Conduct of Hearings                                                               36 
41. Appeals against decisions                                                      36 
42. Failure to pay fees                                                                  36 

Page 30



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
3 

43. Data Control 37 
 
 
Appendix A 39 
Appendix B 40 
Appendix C 43 
Appendix D 44 
Glossary 45 
 

Page 31



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
4 

Executive summary 
 
This Licensing Policy Statement (“The Policy”) has been produced in 
accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (“The Act”) and has been drafted with 
regard to the Department of Culture Media and Sport Guidance (“the 
Guidance”) last updated  in April 2018  

Its purpose is to set out the policies of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (“The 
Council”) when carrying out its functions and responsibilities as the licensing 
authority under the Act.  

Owing to the unique nature of Welwyn Hatfield we have not departed from the 
Guidance under the Licensing Act. However should we need to in future then 
the reasons would be set out within this policy.  

We are reviewing the policy now to reflect the changes that have been 
introduced to the section 182 guidance in April 2018. 

 Changes brought about by the Immigration Act 2016 

 Summary reviews introduced by the Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 
and further key changes  

 Interim steps review following a review. 

 Working with the Home Office immigration enforcement in prevention 
of illegal working; 

 Alcohol Wholesalers Registration Scheme (AWRS) ; 

 Late Night Refreshment Exemptions  

 Personal licence holders- entitlement to work in the UK- documentary 
proof   

 Police and Crime Act 2017 – revocation of personal licences by LA’s.  

 Changes to relevant offences 

 Home Office Enforcement officers become responsible authorities for 
making representations 

From time to time, the Home Office may issue additional supporting guidance 
to licensing authorities and other persons on the GOV.UK website. This 
supporting guidance is good practice guidance and should be viewed as 
indicative and subject to change. Such supporting guidance will broadly reflect 
but will not be part of the statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182 of the 2003 Act. Licensing authorities may wish to refer to, 
but are under no statutory duty to have regard to such supporting guidance 
issued by the Home Office. 

We have also considered the Home Office Guidance issued under section 
182 of the Licensing Act (April 2018) in preparing the policy.   

The licensing policy must be formally reviewed and published every five years 
(section 5 Licensing Act 2003).This review of the policy must be subject to the 
consultation process again. In addition section 5(4) of the Act provides that 
the licensing authority must keep its policy under review during each five year 
period and make appropriate revisions.  Again, any revisions must be subject 
to consultation.  Where a special policy relating to cumulative impact , early 
morning restriction orders or late night levy has been adopted this should be 
reviewed regularly, and again at least every five years, to assess whether it is 

Page 32



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
5 

needed any longer, or indeed needs expanding (see paragraphs 14.20-14.48  
of the s182 Guidance).  It is also important to review any cumulative impact 
policy to ensure that it has had the intended effect.  We have set out a 
definition page to explain the terminology we use in this document and this 
can be found on Page 40 of this policy. 

Accordingly this new revised policy represents an update to previous policies 
and reflects the current situation and practice in Welwyn Hatfield.  

The policy is in force from 20th January 2020 to 20th January 2025 unless 
revised beforehand. We hope that organisations and individuals will use it 
before making licence applications, and that residents and statutory bodies 
will use it when responding to licensing applications or existing licensed 
activities. 

In drawing up the policy we have consulted with Appendix A 

Our consultation was conducted between.17th June and 12th August 2019. 

We placed details on our website and a public advertisement on the Council’s 
notice board. 

It was approved by full Council – the Licensing Authority on 25th November 

Our licensing committee will consider each spring how the policy has 
operated, and whether any changes are needed to it. 

Page 33



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
6 

1. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 
1.1 The borough of Welwyn Hatfield is located in the centre of 

Hertfordshire with the very south of the borough bordering the London 
Borough of Enfield and Central London only around 15 miles south of 
the borough boundary. It contains the two towns of Welwyn Garden 
City and Hatfield and a number of large and small villages providing a 
mix of urban, suburban and rural areas, with each town and village 
having its own identity and character. The borough also contains large 
areas of open countryside and around 79% of the borough is 
designated as Metropolitan Green Belt. The towns are the main 
sources of housing, shopping, leisure and employment in the 
borough.   

1.2 Despite being relatively self-contained, the borough’s proximity to 
London and the good transport network in and around Welwyn 
Hatfield mean that it has strong links to London and also links to 
Stevenage to the north and St Albans to the west in terms of 
commuting patterns and housing markets.  

1.3 The boroughs population is estimated to be around 122,000 at mid- 
2016 making it the second fastest growing local authority in 
Hertfordshire with an annual population growth rate of 2.25 per cent. 
Welwyn Garden City is the largest settlement in the borough in terms 
of population and area.   1.4 Development of Welwyn Garden 
City began in the 1920s and it was built according to the vision of Sir 
Ebenezer Howard, founder of the Garden City movement.  Howard 
planned 'a town designed for healthy living' where people could live, 
work and raise their families away from the miseries of polluted cities.  
The residential and commercial areas were laid out along tree-lined 
boulevards with a neo-Georgian town centre. 1.5 The area now 
known as Old Hatfield grew up around the gates of Hatfield House 
and still retains many historic buildings, notably the Old Palace, St 
Etheldreda’s Church and Hatfield House.  This part of Hatfield is now 
within the Old Hatfield Conservation Area.   

1.6 There is a significant student population at the University of 
Hertfordshire in Hatfield in the College Lane and De Havilland 
Campuses and at two other college campuses at Oakland’s College 
in WGC and the Royal Veterinary College at Potters Bar.   

1.7 Welwyn Hatfield has a unique built environment and heritage which 
shapes the local landscape and is an important part of the borough’s 
identity.  It includes a garden city, 8 conservation areas, 423 listed 
buildings, 73 areas of archaeological significance and 4 registered 
historic parks and gardens.   

1.8 The health of the local population is generally very good with life 
expectancy recorded above the national average for males and 
females and there are currently no health indicators in which the 
borough is significantly worse than the national average. 1.9 The 
Council licences premises for the sale and supply of alcohol, 

Page 34



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
7 

regulated entertainment and late night refreshment. There are a 
variety of different types of premises holding these licences, including 
village halls, clubs, hotels, shopping centres, public houses, 
nightclubs and open spaces.  

1.10 Potential operators should refer to the District Plan and emerging core 
strategy (through our development control team or on our website at 
www.welhat.gov.uk) for details about the local planning authority’s 
approach to granting planning permission for developments where 
such activities may take place. 

 
2.  Purpose and scope of this policy 
 

2.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (The Council) is the Licensing 
Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act) and is responsible for 
the administration and enforcement of the regulatory licensing regime 
governing the sale and supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated 
entertainment and the provision of late night refreshment.  Licensing is 
about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by 
qualifying clubs and at temporary events within the terms of the Act. In 
addition the conditions attached to various authorisations will be 
focused on matters which are within the control of individual licensees 
and others with relevant authorisations. 

2.2 The Licensing Act 2003 imposes a statutory duty upon borough 
councils to produce, develop and review a licensing policy.  Our 
Licensing Policy Statement first came into effect on 7th February 2005.  
The Policy was last revised in 2015 and should be revised every five 
years.   

2.3 The aim of the policy is to secure the safety and amenity of residential 
communities whilst facilitating a sustainable entertainment and cultural 
environment.  We recognise both the needs of residents for a safe and 
healthy environment to live and work and the importance of well-run 
entertainment premises to the local economy and vibrancy of the 
borough.  In addition commercial occupiers have an expectation of an 
environment that is attractive and sustainable for their businesses.   

2.4 We are committed to partnership working with the police, fire service, 
local businesses, licensing trade, health boards, residents and others 
to achieve this aim.  

2.5 A corporate enforcement policy is in place which makes provision for 
shared enforcement with Hertfordshire Constabulary, Trading 
Standards and the Fire Authority. 

2.6 The Council recognises the advantages of a multi-agency safety 
advisory team (SAT) and participates in the team that operates in the 
Borough. The aim of the SAT is; to obtain and share information in 
order to inform member agencies about events that are taking place in 
order to assist in multi-agency contingency planning. The objectives 
are;- 

Page 35

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
8 

 to provide a local multi-agency single point of contact for event 
organisers to share information regarding events. 

 to provide a mechanism to receive, share and disseminate 
information and intelligence amongst SAT partners and other 
relevant agencies. 

 to evaluate potential impacts of an event on each agency and 
the wider community. 

 to use information to inform and develop multi- agency 
contingency planning. 

 to highlight, upon request, and where possible, sources of 
potential further advice to event organisers. 

2.7 We would encourage membership of a “Watch” scheme, e.g. Pub 
watch, Off watch.  We would encourage all businesses to invest in staff 
training and maintain written records of the training. 

2.8 This policy provides information and guidance to licence applicants, 
objectors and any person on our approach to the Licensing Act.  Each 
application will be considered on its own merits.  We will consider this 
licensing policy in making our decision. 

2.9 The Act places a duty on the Council to carry out all its functions under 
the Act with a view to promoting the four Licensing objectives, namely:  

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and  

 The protection of children from harm. 

Each objective is of equal importance. It is important to note that there 
are no other licensing objectives, so that these four objectives are 
paramount at all times. Each licence application will be considered on 
its own merits in the context of the four licensing objectives, and unless 
relevant representations are received from responsible authorities or 
other persons, there is no provision for a licensing authority to impose 
conditions on a licence other than those proposed within an application 
and mandatory conditions prescribed by the Act.  

2.10 However the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and 
purposes. These are vitally important and should be principal aims for 
everyone involved in licensing work. They include 

 protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social 
behaviour and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed 
premises; 

 giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need 
to effectively manage and police the night- time economy and 
take action against those premises that are causing problems; 

 recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed 
premises play in our local communities by minimising the 
regulatory burden on business, encouraging innovation and 
supporting responsible premises; 

 providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the 
needs of local communities and empowers local authorities to 

Page 36



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
9 

make and enforce decisions about the most appropriate 
licensing strategies for their local area; and 

 encouraging greater community involvement in licensing 
decisions and giving local residents the opportunity to have their 
say regarding licensing decisions that may affect them. 

2.11 For the purposes of the Act, the following are licensable activities: 

 The sale by retail of alcohol; 

 The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order 
of, a member of the club; 

 The provision of regulated entertainment; 

 The provision of late night refreshment. 

2.12 The Act provides for four different types of authorisation to regulate the 
provision of these activities: 

 Personal licences – to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from 
premises in respect of which there is a premises licence 

 Premises Licences – to use a premises for licensable activities 

 Club Premises Certificates – to allow a qualifying club to 
engage in qualifying club activities 

 Temporary Event Notices – to carry out licensable activities at 
a temporary event 

2.13 Nothing in this Policy will: 

 prevent any person from applying for any permission and we will 
considered each application on its individual merits 

 prevent any person from making representations on any 
application or applying for a review of a licence or certificate 
under the 2003 Act. 

2.14 We expect all applicants for premises licences and club premises 
certificates to specify the means by which they will promote the four 
licensing objectives.  The application must include an operating 
schedule addressing the licensing objectives, in particular with regard 
to the type of premises, the licensable activities to be provided, the 
operational procedures, the nature of the location and the needs of the 
local community.  An applicant may volunteer any measure as a step 
he or she intends to take to promote the licensing objectives.  The 
measures are likely to be incorporated into the licence as conditions 
and become enforceable under the law.  

2.15 The operating schedule should contain a dispersal policy if applicable, 
which sets out the steps which will be taken at the end of the trading 
session to minimise the potential for disorder and disturbance as 
customers leave the premise. The policy could include measures to 
disperse customers over an extended period and ensure customers 
leave the venue in an orderly fashion and without bottles or glasses.  

2.16 Certain temporary events are not required to be licensed but can be 
notified to the Licensing Authority using the Temporary Event Notice 
procedure. However, depending on the nature and location of such 
events, these can have serious crime and disorder implications. 
Organisers of these events are advised to submit their notification 10 

Page 37



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
10 

working days prior to the event to enable the application to be 
processed.  The Council operates a Safety Advisory Group and 
Temporary Event Notices may be required to be considered by the 
Group.  

2.17 Special occasions such as Bank Holidays, birthday parties and private 
functions in relation to public houses will be dealt with by way of a 
Temporary Event Notice unless detailed in the operating schedule.  

2.18 Premises licences for appropriate public spaces within the district in our 
own name.  The Council hold licences for Hatfield Town centre, and 
Campus West WGC details are in Appendix D. 

 
 3. Contact details/ Advice and Guidance 

 
3.1 Details on making specific applications can be found at 

www.welhat.gov.uk licensing.  Application forms can be downloaded 
and posted or applications can be made online via Gov.UK.  Advice 
can be given before you make your application to resolve potential 
problems and where possible avoid unnecessary hearings and 
appeals. 

Contact details:  
 Licensing 
 Welwyn Hatfield Council 
 Council Offices 
 The Campus 
 Welwyn Garden City 
 Hertfordshire  
 AL6 9UE 

Telephone: 01707 357925 

Fax: 01707 357464 

Email: licensing@welhat.gov.uk 

 

4. Formulation of this policy  
 
4.1 This policy statement is based upon the Act and takes account of 

Department of Culture, Media and Sport Guidance (revised April 2018) 
to local authorities. 

4.2 The Act requires the Council to review its Licensing Policy every 5 
years. In determining its Licensing policy, the Council will have regard 
to any Guidance issued by central government [including that under 
section 182 of the Act] and guidance from other regulatory bodies to 
ensure that its actions are consistent with those nationally.  To further 
ensure consistency, the Licensing authorities of Hertfordshire and 
Bedfordshire will meet as necessary to ensure a degree of consistency 
is being achieved throughout the two counties. 

4.3 There are a number of groups who have a stake in the leisure industry, 

Page 38

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@welhat.gov.uk


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
11 

including providers, customers, residents and enforcers.  All will have 
views and potential concerns that require the Council’s consideration 
before policy decisions are taken. 

4.4 Therefore, before determining its policy for any five-year period, the 
Council will consult all persons stipulated in the Act as requiring 
consultation, namely:  

 The Chief Police Officer of the Hertfordshire Constabulary;   

 The Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service; 

 Each primary care trust or local health board 

 Such persons the Council considers as being representatives of 
the holders of Premises Licences issued by the Council;  

 Such persons the Council considers as being representatives of 
the holders of Personal Licences issued by the Council; 

 Such persons the Council considers as being representatives of 
the holders of Club Premises Certificates issued by the Council; 

 Such persons the Council considers as being representatives of 
the businesses in its area; 

 Such persons the Council considers as being representatives of 
the residents in its area. 

4.5 Additionally the Council will consult other individuals and 
representatives of groups, as it deems appropriate.  A list of all those 
consulted may be found in Appendix A. 

4.6 The Council will give proper weight to the views of all parties consulted 
prior to this policy statement being adopted and taking effect on. 

 
5. Conditions 

 
5.1  Licensing is about the regulation of licensed premises, qualifying 

members’ clubs and temporary events.  We may only impose 
conditions on premises licences and club premises certificates in two 
circumstances: firstly where the applicant volunteers them as part of 
their operating schedule; and secondly on receipt of relevant 
representations from potentially affected members of the public or 
responsible authorities, which the licensing authority accepts as being 
relevant.   

5.2 The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 
SI 2010/860 introduced new mandatory conditions as part of a revision 
to s.19A and 73 B of the Act in 2010.  These do not have to be 
physically included in the licence or certificate but nonetheless will 
apply to every licence and certificate authorising the sale and supply of 
alcohol on the premises. The requirements for a DPS and for all sales 
to be made or authorised by a personal licence holder do however 
have to be physically included in the licence. Only condition 4 of SI 
2010/860 will apply to premises licensed for the sale or supply of 
alcohol for consumption off the premises. The mandatory licence 
conditions do not apply to activities 9including the supply of alcohol) 
authorised by a temporary event notice. 

Page 39



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
12 

5.3 Condition 1 of SI 2010/860 refers to ‘irresponsible promotions’ in 
relation to the retail sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises. 
Any irresponsible promotion is one that fits the descriptions in the 
guidance at 10.40-10.44 (or is substantially similar), is carried on for 
the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises. The aim of the condition is to prohibit or 
restrict promotions which undermine the licensing objectives.  

5.4 Conditions will only be attached to premises licences or club premises 
certificates where they are reasonable, proportionate, enforceable and 
relevant to the premises.  They should focus on matters within the 
control of the individual licence holder or premises user (for temporary 
event notices).  Conditions will be tailored to the type of operation and 
specific characteristics of the individual premises.   

5.5 Where no representations have been received, we must grant the 
authorisation as set out in the operating schedule accompanying the 
application and those that are required by statute.  

5.6 Any conditions should be: 

 clear  

 enforceable  

 evidenced 

 proportionate  

 relevant 

 be expressed in plain language capable of being understood by 
those expected to comply with them. 

5.7 We expect all applicants for premises licences and club premises 
certificates to specify the means by which they will promote the four 
licensing objectives.  The application must include an operating 
schedule addressing the licensing objectives, in particular with regard 
to the type of premises, the licensable activities to be provided, the 
operational procedures, the nature of the location and the needs of the 
local community.  An applicant may volunteer any measure as a step 
he or she intends to take to promote the licensing objectives.  The 
measures are likely to be incorporated into the licence as conditions 
and become enforceable under the law.  

5.8 Conditions on operating schedules will be interpreted in accordance 
with the applicants intention and will not necessarily replicate the 
wording exactly.  

5.9 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of 
nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away 
from the licensed premises and therefore, beyond the direct control of 
the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or 
authorisation concerned. Therefore, conditions will not normally impose 
obligations on the licence holder where it is beyond the direct control of 
the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or 
authorisation concerned. Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such control 
and licensing law will always be part of a holistic approach to the 
management of the evening and night time economy in town centres. 

Page 40



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
13 

5.10 However licensees and certificate holders should maintain control of 
external areas for example beer gardens or smoking shelters. In 
appropriate circumstances the Council will look to other mechanisms, 
which are available for addressing any issues. 

5.11 The Act requires that any conditions attached to licences must be 
specific to individual premises and tailored to the characteristics and 
style of the licensable activities rather than applying a set of 
standardised conditions to all.  The Council will therefore always 
ensure that conditions are individually selected and appropriately 
tailored. In some cases conditions may be drawn from pools of 
conditions set out in the Guidance issued under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

5.12 If you are a community premises such as a church or village hall you 
can now apply to remove the mandatory conditions in section 19(2) and 
(3) of the Licensing Act 2003.  These conditions stated that you must 
have a designated premises supervisor (DPS) who is a personal 
licence holder to authorise every supply of alcohol.  This can be 
removed and replaced with a requirement for a management 
committee responsible for the supply of alcohol.  A management 
committee of a community, church or village hall can apply for the 
removal of the conditions from an existing licence, or apply for a licence 
that does not include these conditions.  There are three types of 
application that can be made: 

 an application to replace the requirement to have a DPS with the 
alternative licence condition for an existing premises licence to 
supply alcohol. 

 a new application for a premises licence including the supply of 
alcohol under the alternative licence condition. 

 an application to vary an existing premises licence to add the 
supply of alcohol under the alternative licence condition 

5.13 The DCMS Guidance and relevant forms can be found on the Council’s 
website: www.welhat.gov.uk 

6. Duplication 
 
6.1 The Council will respect the independent role of its regulatory partners, 

both internal and external to the Council, and it is not intended to 
duplicate existing legislation and regulatory regimes that already places 
obligations on employers and operators e.g. 

 The Gambling Act 2005 

 The Environmental Protection Act 1990 

 The Noise Act 1996 

 The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005  

 The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

 Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 

 The Equality Act 2010 

 The Immigration Act 2016 

 Regulators Code under the Legislative and Regulatory Reform 
Act 2006 

Page 41

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
14 

 
 

7.    Partnership Working 

7.1 There is a continued emphasis on working between the Police, the 
Environmental Health Authority, Home Office Immigration Enforcement 
and the Licensing Authority. 

7.2 Additionally, in carrying out its functions, the Act requires the Council to 
determine and have regard to a Licensing policy and any guidance 
from the Secretary of State. The purpose of this document is to detail 
how the Council will comply with these duties. This document is the 
Licensing policy of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and it is to be 
read in conjunction with the Act and associated regulations and 
guidance from the Secretary of State.  Furthermore, all Licensing 
activities undertaken by the Council will be carried out so far as is 
possible to meet the requirements of the Human Rights Act 1998, that 
ensures the rights and freedoms of individuals; and to fulfil the 
Council’s obligations under section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 
1998, to do all that is reasonably possible to prevent crime and disorder 
within the Borough.  This Licensing Policy is concerned with the 
regulations of licensable activities and is focussed on the direct 
impact(s) of those activities. 

7.3 The Equality Act 2010 places a legal obligation on public authorities to 
have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation; to advance equality of opportunity; and 
to foster good relations, between persons with different protected 
characteristics, and to promote equality of opportunity and good 
relations between persons of different racial groups.  The protected 
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation. 

 We will therefore consider this responsibility when imposing 
conditions on licences so as to ensure that they could not directly 
or indirectly lead to discrimination. 

 Further guidance as to this matter is available from the Equality 
and Human Rights Commission. 

7.4 The Act does not always allow applicants to fully explain their 
proposals, leading the public and responsible authorities to 
misunderstand what is being proposed.  This can lead to 
representations being made and it is only at the licensing hearing that it 
becomes clear what is being proposed.  We would strongly encourage 
applicants to hold pre-application discussions with us, responsible 
authorities and local residents or businesses before submitting 
applications.  

7.5 We will work in partnership with the nominated responsible authorities, 
the Police and Crime Commissioner, Directors of Public Health, and 
our partners within the Community Safety Partnership to promote the 
objectives of the Licensing Act and other local and national strategies 
and initiatives, such as: 

Page 42



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
15 

 Pub Watch and Off watch Schemes 

 Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 

 Proxy watch 

7.6 The licensing authority will consider each application on its own merits. 

7.7  Pub Watch has been developed to enhance the security of customers 
and staff for all types of premises so that they can safely enjoy the 
facilities offered by the Trade.  We take an active part in the scheme 
and will work with all licence holders to continue to promote a safe and 
vibrant borough  

7.8  We will support the use of the PASS schemes in conjunction with 
Trading Standards. 

7.9  We must have regard to the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 and the likely 
effect of the exercise of our functions.  We will do all that we can to 
prevent crime and disorder in our area. We will have particular regard 
to the likely impact of licensing on related crime and disorder in the 
borough particularly when considering the location, impact, operation 
and management of all proposed licence/certificate applications, 
renewals and variations of conditions.  

7.10  The Government produced the Safer Clubbing Guide in order to 
improve safety for all club goers and in particular to reduce the risk of 
harm associated with drug use and clubbing.  The licensing regime is 
expected to use a range of conditions to control the environment at 
night club premises or late night venues.  We will work proactively with 
partners such as the police, club owners and local drug awareness 
agencies to minimise the risk of drug use on premises.  

7.11  The Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 ( soon to be amended by The 
Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014) is designed to 
provide local authorities and the police with a wider, more flexible range 
of powers to meeting existing responsibilities and respond to the needs 
of their communities.  The Act provides powers and sanctions to deal 
with serious anti-social behaviour including the immediate closure of 
licensed premises causing a public noise nuisance.  

7.12   Care will be taken to ensure that where there is an overlap between the 
licensing regime and other statutory regulatory systems, duplication will 
be avoided and control exercised through the most appropriate system. 

7.13   Planning permission is usually required for the establishment of new 
premises and the change of use of premises.  Planning permissions 
that are relevant to licensed premises include: 

7.14  All premises that have a premises licence or club certificate must also 
have authorised planning permission, must comply with all conditions 
of that planning permission, or be deemed permitted development 
pursuant to the General Permitted Development Order (1995).  

7.15  The Licensing and Planning regimes are separate and distinct 
regulatory functions.  Any restrictions on the planning permission are 
not relevant to the determination under the Licensing Act.  However, 

Page 43



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
16 

we would recommend that applicants discuss any restrictions on their 
permission with the Local Planning Authority.  

7.16  The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (and other relevant statutory 
provisions) impose duties on employers, employees and persons in 
control of premises to prevent where possible or minimise the risk of 
injury or ill health to people affected by work activities or the condition 
of the premises.  Local authorities are the enforcing authority for the 
majority of premises on which licensable activities are carried out, with 
the Health and Safety Executive being responsible for some other 
premises.  

7.17  There are general duties, for example risk assessment under the 
Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1992, but 
these may not adequately cover specific issues which arise from 
licensable activities such as the provision of regulated entertainment.  
Licensing objectives overlap with health and safety requirements in so 
far as the licensing objective for public safety requires businesses to 
consider risks on their premises.     

7.18  The Environmental Protection Act 1990 places a duty on local 
authorities to investigate complaints of nuisance which include noise, 
and take enforcement action where a statutory nuisance exists.  The 
Licensing Act provides the power for the police to temporarily close 
licensed premises to prevent nuisance to the public as a result of 
disorder from the premises.  The Anti-Social Behaviour Act gives 
Environmental Health Officers and the police powers to close noisy 
premises for up to 24 hours.  Joint working procedures or protocols 
between Environmental Health Officers, police and licensing staff will 
ensure that these control measures are properly used to protect the 
local environment.  

7.19  Community Protection Notices may be appropriate to deal with certain 
detrimental effects arising from licensed premises such as litter.  

7.20 Where a premises conforms to current fire safety standards the 
Licensing Authority need not attach conditions to any licence or 
certificate. We work with fire authorities to ensure that the public is 
properly protected.  We only add conditions to the premises licence or 
certificate where it is necessary to promote the licensing objectives.   

7.21 The Equalities Act 2010 introduced measures to tackle discrimination 
encountered by disabled people in the areas of employment, access to 
goods, facilities and services and the management, buying or renting of 
land or property.   

7.22 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention 
on Human Rights and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a 
way that is incompatible with a Convention right. The Council will have 
particular regard to the following relevant provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights: 

 Article 6 - that in the determination of civil rights and obligations 
everyone is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a 
reasonable time by an independent and impartial tribunal 

Page 44



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
17 

established by law 

 Article 8 - that everyone has the right to respect for private and 
family life, home and correspondence. 

 Article 1 - of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to the 
peaceful enjoyment of his or her possessions, including for 
example the possession of a licence 

7.23 When considering applications, the Council may need to consider a 
number of wider issues with contributory impact.  To ensure these 
issues receive the necessary consideration, the Council’s Licensing 
Committee will receive, as necessary, reports from the appropriate 
Officer on: 

 The needs of the local tourist economy; 

 The cultural strategy for the area; 

 Levels of employment in the area/need for new investment and 
employment; 

 Any planning considerations that might affect licensed premises. 

7.24 For the purpose of ensuring an informed approach to the execution of 
its duties under the Act, the Council will set up liaison arrangements 
between itself, the Hertfordshire Police, the Hertfordshire Fire and 
Rescue Service, the Hertfordshire County Council Social Services and 
the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board. Internal liaison 
arrangements will be established between the Environmental Health 
Service, the Community Safety Section, the Planning Section and 
Legal Services.  

7.25 The Council will work with the local Police and transport providers to 
ensure that local transport needs are identified to disperse people from 
town centres swiftly and safely and to avoid concentrations that 
produce disorder and disturbance.  Whilst there is currently no public 
transport provision after midnight in the Borough, the Council licenses 
hackney carriages, private hire vehicles and their drivers. 

7.26 The Council will co-operate with the Security Industry Authority as far 
as possible and will consider adding conditions to licences concerning 
the provision of security personnel where necessary and appropriate. 

8.  Interface with planning controls 
 
8.1 The Council will ensure that planning, building control and licensing 

regimes will be properly separated to avoid duplication and inefficiency. 
The Council recognises that Licensing and planning regimes involve 
consideration of different (albeit related) matters. As such applications 
are not the same and are to be dealt with separately by the appropriate 
Committees. Licensing Committees are not bound by decisions made 
by a Planning Committee. The granting by a Licensing Sub Committee 
of any variation of a licence which involves a material alteration to a 
building does not relieve the applicant of the need to apply for planning 
permission or building control, nor imply that such an application will be 
approved.   

8.2 The Council recognises that the ‘need’ for new premises is not 
considered within the remit of the Act.  The assessment of need for 

Page 45



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
18 

retail and leisure development is a matter for the planning authority to 
consider when planning the core strategy. 

8.3 The Council recognises that a condition of planning permission may set 
a terminal hour for the use of premises for commercial purposes. 
Where these hours are different to the licensing hours, the applicant 
must observe the earlier closing time. However, the Council will not use 
the fact that an applicant has gained planning permission as an 
influencing factor in favour of granting a licence. 

8.4 The Council will not treat Licensing applications as a re-run of the 
planning application process and shall not undermine, influence or 
have any bearing on decisions made by the planning authority, or 
appeals against those decisions. Integration can be assured by 
licensing committees reporting to planning committees where 
appropriate and a planning authority can make representation against 
an application if it relates to the licensing objectives. Discussion may 
take place between licensing committees and officers and their 
planning counterparts prior to determination with the aim of agreeing 
mutually acceptable operating hours and scheme designs. 

 
9. Decision Making Forums 

 
9.1 Licensing decisions will be made in consideration of all relevant 

legislation, guidance and this policy. The Council will not make 
decisions that are contrary to the Act, but may deviate from guidance in 
exceptional circumstances, based on the merits of an individual 
application.  Where this occurs, the Council will give reasons for the 
departure. 

9.2 In accordance with the Act and guidance, the Council will set up three 
decision-making forums, namely a Licensing Committee, a Licensing 
Sub Committee and a scheme of delegation to Officers. In the interests 
of speed, efficiency and cost, the Council will ensure that all decisions 
are delegated to the most appropriate level within the organisation, as 
shown in Appendix C. All decisions will be made objectively and not on 
the basis of any political judgement.   

9.3 The Act itself creates a presumption that applications will be granted 
unless a representation is received.  Where a function is delegated to 
an officer that officer will be responsible for liaising between the 
applicant; the public objectors and the responsible authorities to ensure 
that any licence granted is subject to the appropriate conditions.  
Where representations are made then the licensing officer will once 
again liaise with the applicant; the public objectors and the responsible 
authorities to see if an agreement is possible to overcome the 
objections without the need for the matter to go before the Sub-
Committee.  Where representations are raised which cannot be settled 
matters will be referred through to the Sub Committee for 
determination. Contested licensing applications are quasi-judicial in 
nature, the Sub Committee will try to keep the proceedings as informal 
as possible.  However, some degree of formality is needed to ensure 

Page 46



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
19 

that all parties receive a fair hearing.  The procedure is designed to 
ensure that all parties are able to express their views openly and fairly. 

9.4 The Sub-Committee procedure is inquisitorial rather than adversarial 
and, whilst applicants, public objectors, and responsible authorities are 
entitled to bring legal representation with them if they wish, this is by no 
means a requirement to do so.  

9.5 The Sub- Committee usually meets in public; it does have power to 
hear certain applicants in private.  The Sub-Committee, will always 
reach its decision in private.  As a matter of good practice, a public 
announcement of the decision is usually made at the end of the 
Hearing.  

9.6 The Sub-Committee will determine each case on its individual merits 
whilst taking into consideration the terms of this Policy document.  
Where the Sub- Committee determines that it is appropriate to attach 
conditions to the licence/certificate it will ensure that those conditions 
are focused on the direct impact of the activities taking place at the 
premises concerned on members of the public in the area concerned.  
Such conditions will be proportionate to the activity to be controlled and 
will only be imposed in the interests of the licensing objectives. 

 
10.   The Welwyn Hatfield Council Licensing Committee 

 
10.1  The Council will maintain a Licensing Committee consisting of between 

10 and 15 Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Council. The Licensing 
Committee will meet as often as is necessary to consider appropriate 
matters.  

10.2 The full Licensing Committee will review this policy when changes to 
the legislation are made by central government or if there is any other 
legitimate reason to do so. A report will then be made to Full Council to 
approve revisions.  

 
11.   Licensing Sub Committee 

 
11.1 The Council will set up a Licensing Sub-Committee of 3 Members of 

the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s Licensing Committee. The Sub-
Committee will meet and hear every application where representations 
are made unless resolved by mediation between all parties.  

11.2 Where the subcommittee exercises its discretion at a hearing it will take 
into account this licensing policy. 

11.3 Ward Councillors may sit on a Sub-Committee involving an application 
in their ward subject to the rules on prejudicial interest and apparent 
bias/predetermination. 

 

 
12.  Scheme of delegation to Officers 

 

Page 47



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
20 

12.1 The Council has delegated authority to the Head of Public Health and 
Protection to grant licence applications under the Act that are non-
contentious. The Council recognises that the Licensing Committee 
cannot reverse officers’ decisions. 

 

 
13.  The Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority 

 
13.1  We, as the licensing authority, are now included within the prescribed 

list of Responsible Authorities for the Licensing Act 2003.  As a 
responsible authority, we will not make representations on behalf of 
other parties such as residents, local councillors or local community 
groups, as they already have the ability to make representations about 
licensing applications.   

13.2  We consider that our role as the licensing authority is to ensure that 
the conditions attached to a licence or certificate are clear, 
proportionate and enforceable.  Therefore we will use our role as a 
responsible authority to make representations when conditions do not 
meet this requirement.  Where a licence or certificate holder has 
previously failed to comply with conditions on their permission, we may 
make representations where we consider the grant of the variation will 
undermine the licensing objectives.  

13.3  Where we make a representation it will be submitted by an officer who 
has not been a part of the administrative process of the application. 
Our scheme of delegation at Appendix C. 

 
14.  Health as a Responsible Authority 

 
14.1  First-tier local authority Directors of Public Health are now responsible 

authorities with the ability to make representations against licensing 
applications.   

14.2  There is no licensing objective relating to health therefore any 
representations made by or on behalf of the Director of Public Health   
must consider the promotion of the four licensing objectives. 

 

15.  Home Office Immigration Enforcement as a responsible authority 
 
15.1 Home office immigration enforcement officers are now responsible 

authorities with the ability to make representations against licensing 
applications and also gives them the power to review licences. 

15.2 Individuals applying for a premises licence for alcohol or late night 
refreshment must be entitled to work in the UK. Persons may apply for 
a licence for regulated entertainment only without immigration status 
but they will commit a criminal offence if they work illegally. 

15.3 The documents that may be relied upon in support of an application 
demonstrating an entitlement to work in the UK are the same as for 
personal applicants. 

Page 48



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
21 

 

 
16.  Sexual Entertainment 
 

16.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council has adopted the provisions under the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, schedule 3 for 
the licensing of sex shops, cinemas and sexual entertainment venues, 
as amended 

16.2  Premises seeking to provide regulated entertainment at their premises 
that will commonly be of an adult nature should consult with the 
licensing authority in the first instance as to whether separate 
permission will be required. 

16.3  In summary, premises seeking to provide sexual entertainment such as 
lap dancing or like activity more frequently than 11 times a year, and 
more than one occasion per month will need to ensure that they have 
the appropriate permission(s) for these activities from the Licensing 
Authority in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982, as well as those in accordance with the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

16.4  The licensing authority is keen to ensure that any premises looking to 
provide any such entertainment of an adult nature is proactive in its 
operations to promote the licensing objective “Protection of Children 
from Harm”, and will expect operating schedules to address this very 
matter by giving consideration to conditions as to entrance policy, 
security measures for staff and customers alike, staff training and 
management policies so as to ensure that this, and the remaining three 
licensing objectives are fully promoted. 

 
17.  Drugs 

 
17.1 Where relevant representations have been received, special conditions 

may be imposed for certain types of venues to prevent the sale and 
consumption of drugs and to create a safer environment for those who 
may have taken them. These conditions will take into account any 
relevant guidelines issued by the Home Office. Where these conditions 
are to be considered, advice may be sought from appropriate bodies 
such as the Police. 

 
18.  Making an application 

 
18.1  All the relevant information about how to make an application is 

available on the Council website. A full list of responsible authorities 
and their appropriate contact details together with all relevant 
application forms and guidance are all available on the council website; 
 http://www.welhat.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=273 under the business 
tab. 

18.2 Online applications can be made through the council’s website using 
the government’s GOV.UK portal. 

Page 49

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=273


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
22 

18.3 If the application is being made by an individual it should be 
accompanied by acceptable evidence of entitlement to work in the UK 
(this includes where the application is submitted electronically) as set 
out in the application form. 

18.4   Applicants should consider contacting the responsible authorities and 
others such as local residents, who may be affected by the application 
before formulating their application so that the mediation process may 
begin before the statutory time limits come into effect after submission 
of an application. 

 
19   Late Night refreshment Exemptions 
         
        19.1 It is possible to have areas where there is an exemptions to certain 

 forms of Late Night Refreshment licensing where the local authority 
 has designated a particular area as exempt. This Council has not 
 designated any areas at this time but if it were to do so there are only 
 certain types of premises that can be exempted as set out in the 
 regulations. These include motorway service stations, petrol stations, 
 some local authority premises and schools, hospitals, community 
 premises and licensed premises. 

 
20.  Personal licences 

 
20.1  In the case of an application for a personal licence under Part 6 of the 

Act the requirements set out in the Act shall be required. 

20.2  Any individual may apply for a personal licence whether or not he is 
currently employed or has business interests associated with the 
licence use. However proof of entitlement to work in the UK must be 
provided. 

20.3  Where an applicant has unspent convictions relevant to the Act, the 
Council recognises that the Police may object on crime prevention 
grounds.  Should this occur, the Council will consider the application at 
a Licensing Sub Committee. The Council attaches great importance to 
the character of the applicant and will not normally grant the licence 
against a Police objection unless satisfied that the applicant is a person 
who can be trusted to observe the statutory obligations placed on 
licensees.  The Council will ensure that the reasons for any grant or 
refusal in such an occurrence are fully recorded.  The Council 
recognises that the applicant or Police may appeal against any 
decision made by the Licensing Sub Committee. 

20.4  Once a decision to grant a Personal Licence has been made, the 
Council will notify the applicant and local Police and will issue the 
Personal Licence in the prescribed form within 10 working days.  All 
Personal Licences granted will [be in the prescribed format] and will 
specify the holder’s name and address and details of the Council as the 
Licensing authority.  Once granted, a Personal Licence will be valid 
indefinitely unless surrendered or declared suspended or forfeit by the 
courts.  The Council recognises that where any relevant conviction 
comes to light after the grant or renewal of a Personal Licence, the Act 

Page 50



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
23 

makes provision for the revocation of the licence. 

20.5  All holders of a Personal Licence issued by this Council must apply to 
this Council for any changes to be recorded whether or not they 
continue to live or work within the Council boundary.  The Council 
expects to be informed by Personal Licence holders of all changes to 
names and/or address, and any convictions for relevant offences.  The 
Council also expects to be informed by the Courts following the 
conviction of a holder of a Personal Licence issued by the Council. 

20.6 The Police and Crime Act 2017 introduced the power for Licensing 
Authorities to revoke or suspend personal licences. This is a 
discretionary power but if this Council becomes aware of a personal 
licence holder having been convicted of a relevant or foreign offence 
then the case will be heard by our licensing subcommittee. 

20.7 There have been some amendments to the schedule of relevant 
offences under schedule 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 and these will be 
borne in mind. 

 
21.  Designated premises supervisor 

 
21.1 A personal licence is required by individuals who may be engaged in 

making and authorising the sale or supply of alcohol. Not every person 
retailing alcohol at a premises licensed for that purpose needs to hold a 
personal licence although the licensing authority expects that every 
person authorised to make a sale of alcohol is clearly identified, for 
example by way of a written statement. 

 
22.  Public register 

 
22.1 We are required to produce a public register containing details of the 

applications that have been made and this can be found at 
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=1044 under the 
business tab. 

 If further information or details are required you can contact the 
licensing team on the details at page 9. 

 
23.  Making a representation 
 

23.1 Responsible authorities and ‘any other person’ may make 
representations on applications for premises licences or club premises 
certificates, or variations of such licences.  The representation must be 
relevant to at least one of the four licensing objectives and relate to the 
specific premises.  Only the police can make a representation to the 
transfer of a premises licence, variation of a Designated Premises 
Supervisor or a personal licence.  Both Environmental Health and the 
Police can object to a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) under any of the 
licensing objectives.  

23.2  Representations must be made in writing and must be received by us 
within the statutory consultation period (28 days).  We do not have to 

Page 51

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=1044


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
24 

consider any representations received after the end of consultation but 
we have discretion to consider late representations [Belfast City 
Council v Miss Behavin’ Limited (2007)]. 

23.3  Representations about an application may be in support of the 
application or objecting to the application. 

 

24.  Vicinity  
 

24.1  The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended the 
Licensing Act 2003 to mean that any person may make a 
representation about a premises licence or club premises certificate 
application.  They no longer need to establish that they live or work 
near to the premises.  The representation must, however, be relevant 
to at least one of the licensing objective and must not be frivolous or 
vexatious.   

24.2  In making a decision as to what weight to attach to a relevant 
representation, we may consider whether the individual is likely to be 
directly affected by disorder or disturbance occurring or potentially 
occurring on those premises or immediately outside the premises.  In 
other words, it is the impact of issues relating to the four licensing 
objectives that is the key consideration.  However, each representation 
will be judged on its own merit. 

 
25.  Temporary Event Notices (TENs) 

 
25.1  A temporary event notice [TEN] is a quick way to obtain temporary 

permission to carry out licensable activities.  A TEN is required to be 
given for the use of a premises or an area for one or more licensable 
activities which may involve the sale of alcohol, regulated 
entertainment or late night refreshment (LNR) which are not authorised 
by a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate. 

25.2   TEN’s are often given for premises not currently covered by a premises 
licence or club premises certificate.  They can also be used to extend 
the hours of premises or clubs that currently have permissions.  TEN’s 

can be used by individuals to authorise relatively small‐scale ad hoc 

events held in or on any premises involving no more than 499 people at 
any one time, including any staff, organisers or performers and lasting 
for no more than 168 hours (7 days) 

25.3  A maximum of twelve TEN’s can be submitted each calendar year for 
any premises.  One premises can operate its business under TEN’s for 
a maximum of 21 days in a calendar year. 

25.4  The most important aspect of the system of permitted temporary 
activities is that no authorisation as such is required for these events 
from the Licensing Authority. The process involves notification of an 
event to the Licensing Authority, the police and the environmental 
health authority.  Only the police and environmental health may 

Page 52



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
25 

intervene to prevent such an event from taking place. 

25.5  The Licensing Authority may only ever intervene itself, if the limit on 
numbers of events is exceeded. Otherwise, the Licensing Authority is 
only required to issue a timely acknowledgement.   

25.6  For a ‘Standard’ TEN, the premises user must, no later than 10 clear 
working days before the day on which the event is to start and not 
including the day of the event, give a notice to us.  This should have 
with it the prescribed fee. You should also send a copy on the same 
day to the Police and another to Environmental Health Authority.  The 
Police and/or Environmental Health may submit an objection notice if 
they consider that by allowing the event to take place at least one 
licensing objective would not be met.   

25.7  Where the Police or Environmental Health object they will serve an 
objection notice on you.  You can then discuss the event and agree 
modifications to address their concerns.  If no agreement is reached, 
we will hold a hearing to consider the objection.   

25.8  If the TEN is in connection with licensed premises, the Licensing Sub 
Committee may impose one or more of the existing licence conditions.  
Conditions can only be imposed on the TEN where they already exist 
on the premises licence or the club premises certificate.  The Act 
requires the conditions to be appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and not inconsistent with the carrying out of the 
licensable activities. 

25.9  There are also ‘Late’ TEN’s which can be served between 9 and 5 
clear working days before the day on which the event is to start and not 
including the day of the event.  If there is an objection from either the 
Police or Environmental Health, the event will not go ahead because 
there is no ability to hold a hearing or agree modifications. 

25.10 The Council have an established ‘Safety Advisory Group’ (SAG) 
comprising of representatives from the emergency services and other 

statutory agencies.  This Group advise and co‐ordinate planning for 

public events in the district whether or not a premises licence or a 
temporary event notice is needed. 

25.11We recommend that you provide as much notice as possible of any 
event you intend to hold under a TEN.  You should ensure that 
you provide as much specific detail about the nature of your event 
as is possible on the TEN. E.g. whether the premises are an open 
field, beer tent or an area inside a building. 

 
26.  Large events and events attended by over 5,000 persons 

 
26.1  Organisers of large events are strongly advised to contact the Council’s 

Licensing Team for advice at the earliest opportunity when planning 
events.  Where necessary, the advice of the ‘Safety Advisory Group’ 
can be obtained, or discussions held with the Police and Environmental 
Health to avoid any unnecessary objections being made that may arise 
from misunderstandings or confusion as to what is being proposed.  

Page 53



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
26 

26.2 Whilst a premises licence could be granted after 28 days of the 
application being served, applicants should be aware that the 
processing time for an application that has received relevant 
representations can be up to 2 months.  Organisers should also have 
early discussions with responsible authorities such as the Police, 
Environmental Health and Fire Protection 

26.3 Organisers of festivals or concerts who require a temporary time limited 
premises licence are strongly advised to contact the Licensing 
Authority and Environmental Health at least 6 months prior the event 
taking place.   

 
27.  Live Music Act 

 
27.1  The Live Music Act came into force on 1st October 2012 and is 

designed to encourage more performances of ‘live’ music.  The Act 
removes the licensing requirements for: 

 amplified ‘live’ music between 8am and 11pm before audiences of 
no more than 200 people on premises authorised to sell alcohol 
for consumption on the premises 

 amplified ‘live’ music between 8am and 11pm before audiences of 
no more than 200 people in workplaces not otherwise licensed 
under the 2003 Act (or licensed only for the provision of late night 
refreshment) 

 unamplified ‘live’ music between 8am and 11pm in all venues 

 the provision of entertainment facilities 

27.2 Where licensable activities continue to take place on premises any 
licence conditions relating to ‘live’ music will be suspended, but it will 
be possible to impose new, or reinstate existing conditions following a 
review. 

27.3  We will consider whether an activity constitutes ‘the provision of 
regulated entertainment’ in each case and consider each case on its 
own merits.  We would encourage organisers to check with us as to 
whether we consider a performance is live music before making 
arrangements. 

27.4  Provision of facilities for making music and dancing - The Act removes 
the need to licence entertainment facilities such as dance floors 
microphone stands and pianos etc. that are made available for use by 
the public. 

28.     Wholesalers 
 
28.1  Businesses which sell alcohol (for example retailers of alcohol and 

 trade buyers) need to ensure that the UK wholesalers they buy alcohol 
 from have been approved by HMRC, under the Alcohol Wholesaler 
 Registration Scheme (AWRS). They will need to check their                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 wholesalers Unique Registration Number (URN) against the HMRC 
 online database. This is an ongoing obligation and if a business is 
 found to have bought alcohol from an unapproved wholesaler, they 

Page 54



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
27 

 may be liable to a penalty, or could even face a criminal 
 prosecution and their alcohol stock will be seized. Any trader who 
 buys alcohol from a wholesaler for onward sale to the general 
 public does not need to register unless they sell alcohol to other 
 businesses. 

 
28.2   Businesses need to carry out checks prior to trading with each   

 wholesaler and periodically afterwards.  
 
 

 
29.  Licensing Policy Decisions 

 
29.1 The Council recognises that its duties under the Act are concerned with 

the promotion of the Licensing Objectives and all policy decisions will 
therefore relate to the Licensing objectives. In addition, in the case of 
terms and conditions attached to various permissions, the Council will 
focus on matters that are within the control of individual licensees.  
Accordingly, these matters will centre on the premises and places 
being used for licensable activities and the vicinity of those premises 
and places. The Council will not adopt quotas that restrict the 
consideration of any application on its individual merits or which seek to 
impose limitations on trading hours in particular areas. 

29.2 The Council will principally focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public living, 
working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned. 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-alcohol-wholesaler-registration-
scheme-awrs 

 
30.  Licensing Hours 

 
30.1  Licensing hours should not inhibit the development of a thriving safe 

night-time local economy which is important for investment and 
employment locally and attractive to domestic and international tourists.  
We will expect applicants to consider whether conditions are necessary 
for applications in areas which have denser residential accommodation. 

30.2  We will consider individual applications on their own merits. Fixed 
predetermined closing times for particular areas will not form part of the 
policy. Restriction on trading hours will be considered only where 
necessary to meet the licensing objectives.  There will be a 
presumption to grant the hours requested unless there are objections 
to those hours raised by responsible authorities or the public on the 
basis of the licensing objectives.    

30.3  The commercial demand for additional premises licences (as distinct 
from cumulative impact) will not be a matter for us as the licensing 
authority.  These are matters for the local planning authority and 
market demand.  

Page 55



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
28 

30.4  We will normally expect to grant  shops, stores and supermarkets with 
permission  to provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the 
premises at any time when the premises is open, unless there are good 
reasons for restricting those hours.  It may be appropriate for us to 
restrict the sale of alcohol where we have received representations 
about crime and disorder issues, e.g. street drinkers. 

30.5 We recognise that flexible licensing hours for the sale of alcohol can 
help to ensure that concentrations of customers leaving premises 
simultaneously are avoided.  Unreasonable, repetitive, frivolous and 
vexatious representations will be disregarded.  Representations from 
competitors that suggest restriction on hours because further facilities 
for the sale of alcohol are not “needed” will be disregarded.  

30.6 The Council operates an out of hour’s noise service based on the 
assessment of need. The nature and number of complaints are 
recorded and may be used when compiling reports for our licensing 
committee and sub committees. 

30.7 Where relevant representations are made, the Council will consider the 
proposed hours on their individual merits. Notwithstanding this, the 
Council may require stricter conditions in areas that have denser 
residential accommodation to prevent public nuisance.  The Council will 
endeavour to work with all parties concerned in such instances to 
ensure that adequate conditions are in place.  

 
31 Variations 

31.1 The Council recognises that where a premises licence holder wishes to 
amend the licence the Act allows, in most cases, for an application to 
vary to be made rather than requiring an application for a new premises 
licence.  

 
32.  Cumulative Effect  

 
32.1 We will not take ‘need’ into account when considering an application.  

32.2  We do not currently have any cumulative impact zones in the district.  
However, we recognise that the cumulative impact of the number, type 
and density of licensed premises in a given area may lead to serious 
problems of nuisance and disorder outside and some distance from the 
premises.  Responsible authorities or members of the public can make 
representations that an area has become saturated with premises 
making it a focal point for groups of people to gather creating 
exceptional problems of disorder and nuisance beyond the impact from 
the individual premises.  In those circumstances we would consider 
whether there is evidence to support the implementation of a 
cumulative impact zone.   

32.3  Other mechanisms are available to deal with cumulative effect.  For 
example: 

 Planning controls 

Page 56



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
29 

 Partnership working with the Police the Trade and others to 
create effective dispersal strategies such as CCTV surveillance, 
ample taxi ranks, public conveniences, street cleaning and litter 
patrols 

 Police enforcement concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour including the issuing of fixed penalty notices 

 The prosecution of personal licence holders or members of staff 
who sell alcohol to people who are drunk 

 Public Space Protection orders where alcohol consumption can 
be restricted if necessary to prevent disorder [PSPO] 

 Police powers to close for up to 24 hours any licensed premises 
or temporary event on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of 
disorder or noise emanating from the premise causing nuisance 

 the power of the police, other responsible authority or a member 
of the public to seek a review of the licence in question 

32.4 The Council recognises that where the number, type and density of 
premises selling alcohol is unusual, as can occur in some town centres, 
problems of nuisance and disorder can occur either outside or some 
distance from the licensed premises. The Council has therefore 
introduced a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) where alcohol 
consumption can be restricted if necessary to prevent disorder the 
extent of this order can be viewed at www.welhat.gov.uk/alcohol. 
Where this authority occupies or manages premises, or premises are 
managed on its behalf, and it licences that place for alcohol sales the 
PSPO will not apply when the licence is being used for alcohol sales 
(or 30 minutes after) but the place will be subject to the PSPO at all 
other times. This allows this authority to promote community events 
whilst still using PSPOs to tackle the problems of anti-social drinking.  

 
33.  Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMRO) 
 

33.1  The power for licensing authorities to introduce an EMRO is specified 
in sections 172A to 172E of the 2003 Act which was amended by 
Section 119 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 
These provisions came into force on 31st October 2012. 

33.2  Regulations prescribing the requirements in relation to the process for 
making an early morning restriction order (EMRO) were brought in 
force on 31st October 2012.1 

33.3 Guidance2 has been introduced in relation to: 

 the EMRO process 

 the evidence base 

 introducing an EMRO 

 advertising an EMRO 

 dealing with representations 

 hearings 

                                                 
1
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2551/made/data.pdf 

2
 http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/alcohol-drugs/alcohol/alcohol-supporting-

guidance/ 

Page 57

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2551/made/data.pdf
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/alcohol-drugs/alcohol/alcohol-supporting-guidance/
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/alcohol-drugs/alcohol/alcohol-supporting-guidance/


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
30 

 implementation  

 limitations 

 enforcement 

33.4  The legislation gives licensing authorities discretion to restrict sales of 
alcohol by introducing an EMRO to restrict the sale or supply of alcohol 
to tackle high levels of alcohol related crime and disorder, nuisance 
and anti-social behaviour. The order may be applied to the whole or 
part of the licensing authority area and if relevant on specific days and 
at specific times. We must be satisfied that such an order would be 
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.  

33.5  The only exemptions relating to EMROs are New Year’s Eve and the 
provision of alcohol to residents in premises with overnight 
accommodation by means of mini bars and room service.  The decision 
to implement an EMRO should be evidence based and we may wish to 
outline the grounds which we will take into consideration when 
considering implementation of an EMRO. This should include 
consideration of the potential burden imposed as well as the potential 
benefits. 

33.6  We may wish to amend references to hearings in our policy to reflect 
any procedural changes outlined in regulations. We may also wish to 
include a map or maps of proposed EMRO areas.  The function of 
making, varying or revoking an EMRO is specifically excluded from the 
delegation of functions and may not be delegated to the Licensing 
Committee but is exercised by Full Council. 

 
34.  Late Night Levy 

 
34.1  The legislative provisions relating to the late night levy are not part of 

the Licensing Act 2003 but are contained in sections 125 to 139 of the 
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.  The provisions 
came into force on 31st October 2012. 

34.2   Currently we are not introducing a late night levy, however, in the 
future we may consider a levy and therefore we have set out some 
details about late night levies. 

34.3  There are also Regulations in force setting out the way in which the 
levy must be applied; the way it will be administered, as well as 
arrangements for expenses, exemptions and reductions.  There is also 
Guidance which sets out: 

 implementing the levy and the consultation process 

 the design of the levy 

 exemptions from the levy 

 reductions in levy charges 

 how revenue raised from the levy may be spent 

 the levy charges 

 the levy collection process 

34.4 We will have discretion as to whether we exempt certain premises but 

Page 58



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
31 

these can only be the types of premises set out in paragraphs 1.23 to 
1.33 of the Guidance on the Late Night Levy.  We also have discretion 
whether to reduce the amount of the levy by 30% for premises which 
participate in business-led best practice schemes [Guidance on the 
Late Night Levy, paragraphs 1.34 to 1.38].   

34.5 Any revenue from the levy must be split between us, as the licensing 
authority, and the Police, with at least 70% of the ‘net’ levy (after 
expenses) paid to the Police.  The Late Night Levy Guidance suggests 
at paragraph 1.40 that we may wish to use existing partnership 
arrangements with the Police to ensure that the police intentions for the 
share of the levy revenue paid to them are genuine.   

34.6 These new powers enable us to charge a levy in relation to persons 
who are licensed to sell or supply alcohol late at night as a means of 
raising a contribution towards the costs of policing the night-time 
economy.  It is a ‘local’ power that we can choose whether or not to 
exercise.  Any decision to introduce, vary or cease the requirement for 
a levy has to be made by the full council. Other decisions in relation to 
how the levy is administered may be subject to delegation. 

34.7  We do not anticipate introducing a late night levy at present.   

 
35.  General Enforcement Statement 
 

35.1 All decisions and enforcement action taken by us will have regard to 
the relevant provisions of the Licensing Act 2003, s182 Guidance, the 
enforcement policy of the Council and to the Regulators Compliance 
Code. 

35.2 We will establish and maintain both proactive and reactive enforcement 
protocols with the local police and other enforcement agencies. 
Protocols will provide for the proportionate targeting of agreed problem 
and high-risk licensed activities needing greater attention and a 
corresponding lighter touch for well run, lower risk premises in the area.  

35.3  We believe that proportionate but vigorous enforcement will be a key 
element in ensuring the successful implementation of the licensing 
regime and that the four licensing objectives are met.  We intend to use 
our powers under the Licensing Act 2003 and other relevant legislation 
to ensure a proper balance is struck between the interests of the 
licensed trade and of the wider community.   

35.4 The Council will arrange for Officers to inspect every premises that it 
has not previously inspected to secure compliance with the Licensing 
objectives and this policy.  Further inspections of premises will be 
undertaken on a risk based principle and may vary between 6 months 
and three years, targeting poorly managed premises that fail to 
satisfactorily meet the Licensing objectives.  

35.5 We will use a graduated form of response expected to resolving issues 
of non-compliance, including an action plan, although we recognise 
that in serious cases a prosecution or a review application will be the 
appropriate action.   

Page 59



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
32 

35.6 To ensure that resources are effectively targeted at high-risk premises, 
the Council will seek to work closely with the Police to share 
information about licensees and licensed premises to fulfil duties held 
by both parties under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

35.7 All enforcement action undertaken by the Council will be in accordance 
with the relevant Council Enforcement Policy and copies will be made 
available on request and are available on our website.  This 
Enforcement Policy is based on the Regulators Code from central 
government. 

35.8 In addition, the Council recognises that the Police are given their own 
powers in relation to enforcement under the Act.  

35.9 It is also incumbent for operators of licensed premises to provide 
appropriate training for their staff to ensure the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

 
36. Copyright 

 
36.1 Licenses may be required for the use of copyright works, such as 

music and screening licenses for: a performance of live music; any 
playing of recorded music; and an exhibition of a film. The provision of 
the entertainment would then be compliant with the Copyright, Designs 
and Patents Act 1988.  

 

37.  Children 
 

37.1  The body which Welwyn Hatfield Council recognises as being 
competent to advise on matters relating to the protection of children 
from harm is the Hertfordshire County Council, Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Board and they are listed as a responsible authority in 
Appendix B. 

37.2 The Council will not seek to limit the access of children to any premises 
unless it is necessary for the prevention of physical, moral or 
psychological harm. In all other cases it will be left to the discretion of 
the premises licence holder, club certificate holder or other relevant 
person where no conditions or restrictions are imposed.   

37.3 The areas that will give rise to particular concern in respect of children 
are listed below. 

 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are 
commonly provided. 

 Where there have been convictions of members of staff at the 
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for 
underage drinking; 

 With a known association with drug taking or dealing 

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but 
not, for example, the simple presence of a small number of cash 
prize gaming machines); and 

 Where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is 

Page 60



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
33 

the exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the 
premises. 

This list is not exhaustive. 

37.4  Each application will be considered on its own merits.  Where there are 
matters that give rise to serious concerns and suitable conditions 
cannot address those concerns we will consider refusing an 
application.  

37.5 The range of alternatives which may be considered for limiting the 
access of children where that is necessary for the prevention of harm 
for children can be adopted in combination, and include 

 Limitations on the hours when children may be present; 

 Limitations excluding the presence of children under certain ages 
when particular specified activities are taking place; 

 Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be 
given access; 

 Age limitations (below 18) 

 Requirements for accompanying adults (including for example, a 
combination of requirements which provide that children under a 
particular age must be accompanied by an adult); and 

 Full exclusion of those people under 18 from the premises where 
any licensable activities are taking place. 

37.6 The council will take advice from a body competent to recognise the 
dangers of harm to children, namely the Hertfordshire Local 
Safeguarding Children Board. The Council will maintain close contact 
with the police, young offenders’ teams and trading standard officers 
about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of alcohol by 
minors and are involved in the development of any strategies to control 
or prevent these unlawful activities and pursue prosecutions. 

37.7  It is unlawful for children under 18 to attempt to buy alcohol, just as it is 
unlawful to sell or supply alcohol to them.  The mandatory conditions 
require all premises selling or supplying alcohol to have an age 
verification scheme in place. 

37.8  Acceptable forms of Proof of Age are: 

  Photo Driving Licence 

  Passport 

  Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) 

37.9  Where a premises is used for film exhibitions, we will expect the 
premises to restrict access in line with any certificate granted by the 
British Board of Film Classification or the Council itself.   

37.10   In recent years, incidents of child sexual exploitation (CSE) taking 
 place in licensed premises have been of particular concern across the 
 country. Whilst there has been no specific intelligence suggesting 
 incidents have taken place  in Welwyn Hatfield,  the Council will 
 work via existing partnerships, including  the licensed trade, to ensure 
 that any concerns in relation to CSE can be  tackled and addressed 
 appropriately 
 

Page 61



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
34 

38. Requests for a review of licences 
 

38.1 The Council recognises that at any time after a Premises Licence or 
Club Premises Certificate has been issued, a responsible authority, 
such as the Police or Fire Authority, a councillor, or any other person, 
may ask the Council to review the licence to premises because of 
problems arising in connection with any of the four Licensing 
objectives.  38.2 Responsible authorities will aim to give licensees early 
warning of any concerns identified at premises. The Council will accept 
requests for a review of a licence unless delegated officers deem them 
to be frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. In the case of requests which 
are deemed frivolous, vexatious or repetitious, the Council will notify 
the person making representations of the reason behind the Council’s 
decision and inform them that the Council intends to take no further 
action.  

38.3 The Council will set up a scheme of delegation to allow the Head of 
Public Health and Protection to decide if a request for a review of a 
licence is valid. The authority’s role will be to administer the process 
and determine its outcome at a hearing where an evidential basis for 
the allegations made will need to be submitted. 

38.4 In general, the Council will treat representations as repetitious if no 
more than 12 months have elapsed since an identical or substantially 
similar representations has been made, although in exceptional and 
compelling circumstances a shorter period may be deemed acceptable. 
The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does 
not apply to responsible authorities which may make more than one 
request for a review of a premises licence within a twelve month period. 
Other instances where a representation may be considered repetitious 
are at 11.2 of the section 182 guidance to the licensing act. 

38.5 If a request for review is justified, the Council will advise the holder of 
the Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate concerned that a 
request has been accepted and the Council will provide them with the 
details pertaining to the nature of the request, including any supporting 
evidence, in order that they may be fully aware of the allegations made.  
The Council will then arrange a meeting of the Licensing Sub 
Committee, who will review the Premises Licence or Club Premises 
Certificate. 

38.6 Where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing 
authority will not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough 
action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other 
measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the licence. 

38.7 In cases when the crime prevention objective is being undermined 
through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that 
revocation of the licence, even in the first instance, will be seriously 
considered. 

38.8 We would recommend that any one applying for a review to consider 
Chapter 11 of the section 182 guidance to the Licensing Act 2003. 

Page 62



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
35 

38.9 Reviews following a closure order or an illegal working compliance order 
are subject to certain timescales as set out in the legislation. A closure 
order comes under section 80 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 and an illegal working compliance order comes under 
section 38 and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. 

38.10 Premises that do not operate a responsible policy or operate due 
diligence with regard to the sale of alcohol to children and persistent 
sales of alcohol have occurred, a review will normally take place and if 
appropriate the licence will be revoked. However the section 182 
guidance at 11.29 which refers to a proportionate approach rather than 
being too specific will be observed. 

 
39.  Summary reviews 

 

39.1 In addition the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises 
to which it relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police 
based on nuisance or disorder, or the police have made an application 
for summary review on the basis that the premises are associated with 
serious crime and/or disorder. Summary reviews were introduced into 
the Licensing Act by the Violent Crime Reduction Act. 

 

39.2   The licensing authority is aware that they must hold and determine a full 
review of the premises licence after receipt of a police chief’s 
application for a summary review. The hearing must take place within 
28 days of the application and there can be no adjournment of the 
hearing or delay in reaching a determination. The hearing will take 
place even if the Chief Officer of the police asks to withdraw their 
application or representations. 

39.3   The licensing authority’s determination does not have effect until the 
end of the 21 day period given for appealing the decision, or until the 
dispersal of any appeal that is lodged. To ensure that there are 
appropriate and proportionate safeguards in place at all times, the 
Licensing Authority will review any Interim Steps that it has taken that 
are in place on the date of the hearing of the final review, and consider 
whether it is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives for 
the steps to remain in place, or if they should be modified or withdrawn. 
The review of the interim steps will take place immediately after the 
determination of the review has been reached and in making its 
decision the licensing authority will consider any relevant 
representations made.39.4 A summary review flowchart is available at 
p.102 of the Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 April 2018. In addition non statutory guidance issued by the 
Home Office can be found at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/section-53a-licensing-act-
2003-summary-review-guidance 

           

 

Page 63



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
36 

40.  Conduct of hearings 
 

40.1 The Council will ensure that meetings of the Licensing Sub Committee 
are conducted in accordance with any rules prescribed by the 
Secretary of State and in accordance with the rules of natural justice 
and with respect for the human rights of individuals present 

40.2 Meetings will be conducted in accordance with appropriate Council 
procedures   and the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 
2007.  Local Councillors can make representations in writing and at a 
hearing on behalf of residents or local businesses if specifically 
requested to do so. They can also make representations in their own 
right. The Council will ensure that a legal advisor is available to advise 
the Licensing Sub Committee on points of law relevant to the matters 
under consideration. 

40.3 The Licensing Sub Committee will relate all decisions made to the 
Councils duty to promote the Licensing objectives. Minutes of the 
Licensing Committee and Licensing Sub Committee will be recorded 
and made available upon request 

 
41.  Appeals against decisions 

 
41.1 The Council recognises that subject to the requirements of the Act, a 

person may appeal against a decision of the Council to the Magistrates 
Court. Entitlements to appeal for parties aggrieved by decisions of the 
Licensing Act are set out in schedule 5 to the Act.  

41.2   All parties who were party to the original hearing but not involved 
directly in the appeal will be provided with clear reasons for any 
subsequent decisions where appeals are settled out of court. 

 
42.  Failure to pay annual fees –licence suspension 

 

42.1  The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended the 
Licensing Act 2003 to allow us to suspend licences and certificates.  
We must suspend premises licences or club premises certificates when 
the annual fee is not paid. 

42.2  Where an annual fee is not paid we will write to tell you that you have a 
period of 21 days from the date the fee became due to pay the 
outstanding fees.  The period of 21 days exists so as to allow for 
resolution as to a dispute, or as a result of an error.  After this period 
the licence or certificate will be suspended.  We will not send any 
further warning letters. 

42.3  We will write to the licence holder advising you of the suspension and 
tell you the date on which the suspension will take effect.  This will be 2 
days after the day the notice is given. 

42.4 We will notify Hertfordshire Constabulary and the relevant responsible 
authorities as defined under the Act. 

Page 64



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
37 

42.5 The lifting of a suspension will only take place from the day on which 
we receive the payment of the outstanding fee/fees.  In all instances, 
we shall confirm that the suspension has been lifted in writing the 
following working day after the payment has been received.  
Notification will also be provided to Hertfordshire Constabulary, and the 
relevant responsible authorities as notified at the time the suspension 
notice was given. 

42.6 The quickest way to reinstate a licence would be to pay by card directly 
to the licensing team on 01707 357925 although there are other 
methods of payment. As described on the council website. 

42.7 Please note it is a criminal offence under section 136 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 to carry out or attempt to carry out licensable 
activities without a permission i.e. once your premises licence or 
club premises certificate are suspended. 

 
43.  Data Control 

 
 

43.1 The Council will respect the principles of good data protection in 
executing this Policy and its duties under the Act. Where appropriate, 
documents issued by the Council will be in the prescribed format. The 
Council reserves the right to reject any document furnished by any 
person in connection with this Act on the grounds that it is illegible or in 
a form unsuitable for processing by Council equipment. Additionally, in 
the case of photographs, drawings and plans, the Council reserves the 
right to reject these items on the grounds they are of an inappropriate 
scale, unclear or insufficiently detailed.  

Page 65



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
38 

Appendix A. List of persons consulted 
 
 

1.1.1 Person(s) from whom comments will be invited  

Chief Constable, Hertfordshire Constabulary and Police Sergeant 
Community Safety Unit  

Chief Fire Officer and Community Fire Safety Unit 
Fire protection department of Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service 

All persons recorded on the Environmental Health database as holding a 
Premises licence or a premises operating with a premise licence, Late Night 
Refreshment Licence including some personal licence holders. 

Director of Public Health England Hertfordshire 

All persons recorded on the Court database as being issued with a club 
registration certificate or premise operating with a club premises licence. 

The chairs of the Chambers of Commerce 

Chairs of the Residents’ Associations 
Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Council Community Panel 

The Parish and Town Councils 

Neighbouring local authorities 

WHC Planning Policy Unit , Town Centre Manager,  Community Safety Unit 
Environmental Health Teams Law and Admin Service 

HCC social services 

Trading Standards 

Local solicitors and those involved with applications in the Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough. 

The Health and Safety Executive 

British Transport Police 

Local Tourist Office 

Musicians’ Union and Equity 

Page 66



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
39 

Appendix B – List of Responsible Authorities and contact details 
 
Social Services 
Contact:  
Address: Relevant Authority Licensing Act 

Room 127 
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board 
County Hall 
Pegs Lane 
Hertford 
SG13 8DF 

Tel.  01992 555077 
 
 
Weights and Measures Authority 
Contact: Chief Trading Standards Officer 
Address: Hertfordshire Trading Standards 
  45 Grosvenor Road 
  St Albans 
  Herts. 
  AL1 3AW 
Tel:  01727 813849 
Email:  hcc.tradstad@hertfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 
Police 
Contact:  Police Licensing Officer 
Address: Licensing Department 

Hatfield Police Station 
Comet Way 
Hatfield 
Herts. 
AL10 9SJ 

Tel.  01707 806492 
 
 
Environmental Health    
Contact: Borough Environmental Health Officer 
Address:  Environmental Health 
  Welwyn Hatfield Council 
  The Council Offices 
  The Campus 
  Welwyn Garden City 
  Herts. 
  AL8 6AE 
Tel.   01707 357242 
Email.  e.health@welhat.gov.uk 
Web:  www.welhat.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 67

mailto:hcc.tradstad@hertfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:e.health@welhat.gov.uk
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
40 

Planning 
Contact:  
Address:  Planning 
  Welwyn Hatfield Council 
  The Council Offices 
  The Campus 
  Welwyn Garden City 
  Herts. 
  AL8 6AE 
Tel.  01707 357000 
Email.  planning@welhat.gov.uk 
Web:  www.welhat.gov.uk 
 
 
Fire   
Contact: Fire Protection manager 
Address: Fire Protection Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service 
    

  
Postal Point CH0331 
Room 346 Old Block County Hall 
Pegs Lane 
Hertford 
Hertfordshire 

  SG13 8DQ  
Email:  administration.cfs@hertfordshire.gov.uk  
Web:  www.hertsdirect.org.uk 
 
 
Health and Safety Executive 
Contact: Woodlands 
Address:  Manton Lane 
  Manton Industrial Estate 
  Bedford 
  Bedfordshire 
  MK41 7LW 
Tel:  08701 545500 
Web:  www.hse.gov.uk 
 
 
Health Authority 
Contact: Licensing Applications 
Address:  Public Health (postal point SFAR232) 
  Farnham House 
  Six Hills Way 
  Stevenage   Herts. 
  SG21 2FQ 
Tel.   Email.  Publichealth@hertfordshire.gov.uk  
 
   

Page 68

mailto:planning@welhat.gov.uk
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
http://www.hertsdirect.org.uk/
http://www.hse.gov.uk/


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
41 

Home Office Immigration EnforcementAddress  Alcohol Licensing 
Team 
  Lunar House 
  40Wellesley Road 
  Croydon 
  CR9 2BY 
Email  Alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk 

Page 69



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
42 

Appendix C. Decision making arrangements 

 
Matter under 
consideration  

Appropriate forum 

Full Committee Sub Committee Head of Public Health 
and Protection (who 
may further delegate to 
another officer). 

Application for a personal 
licence 

 If Police objection 
made 

If no representation made 

Application for a personal 
licence with unspent 
convictions 

 All cases  

Application for premises 
licence 

 If relevant 
representation 
made 

If no representation made 

Application for club 
premises certificate 

 If relevant 
representation 
made 

If no representation made 

Application for provisional 
statement 

 If relevant 
representation 
made 

If no representation made 

Application to vary 
premises licence/club 
certificate  

 If relevant 
representation 
made 

If no representation made 

Application to vary 
designated personal 
licence holder 

 If a police 
representation 

1.2 All other cases 

Request to be removed as 
designated premises 
supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for transfer of 
premises licence 

 If a police 
representation 

All other cases 

Applications for interim 
authorities 

 If police 
representations 

All other cases 

Application to review 
premises licence 

 All cases  

Application to review club 
premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether a 
request for review is 
irrelevant, frivolous or 
vexatious 

  All cases 

Decision to object when 
local authority is a 
consultee and not the lead 
authority 

 All cases  

Determination of a police 
representation to a 
temporary event notice 

 All cases  

 

Page 70



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
43 

Appendix D 
 
 

   

   

Hatfield Town Centre and White 
Lion Square 

Supply of alcohol. 
Provision of regulated 
entertainment – plays, 
live music, recorded 
music, performances of 
dance and anything of a 
similar description. 
 

WGC Campus West Supply of alcohol, 
Provision of regulated 
entertainment – plays, 
live music, recorded 
music, performances of 
dance and anything of a 
similar description. 
Films, Plays and late 
night refreshment. 
 

Page 71



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
44 

Glossary 
 
Appeals Entitlement to appeal for parties aggrieved by 

decisions of the Licensing Authority are set 
out in Schedule 5 of the Act. 
 

Act (The) The Licensing Act 2003. 
 

BBFC British Board of Films Censors. 
 

Club Premises Premises which are occupied by and 
habitually used for the purposes of a club. 
 

Cumulative Impact The effect of a number of premises selling 
alcohol causing problems of nuisance and 
disorder when the capacities of these 
premises are taken together. 
 

Counter Notice Where an objection is given in respect of a 
TEN the relevant Licensing Authority must 
hold a hearing and give the premises user a 
counter notice if it considers it necessary for 
the promotion of the crime prevention 
objective. 
 

Council (The) Welwyn Hatfield Council. 
 

DCMS Department of Culture Media and Sport. 
 

Determine Decide upon. 
 

Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

The individual for the time being specified in 
that licence as the premises supervisor. 
 

Enforcement Concordat Code of Enforcement based on the principles 
of explanation, resolving problems and rights 
of appeal. 
 

Frivolous Not serious, shallow or superficial. 
 

Health and Safety Legislation Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974. 
 

Interested Party Local resident, resident association, local 
business or trade association or body 
representing the above, or local councillors. 
 

Local Culture Partnership Developed a strategy to improve culture 
opportunities in the Borough. 
 

Page 72



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
45 

Licensed Premises A premises in respect of which a premises 
licence has effect. 

Licensing Committee Established by the Licensing Authority and 
consisting of at least ten but no more than 
fifteen members of the Authority. 
 

Licensing Sub Committee A Licensing Committee may establish one or 
more sub committee consisting of three 
Members of the Committee. 
 

LNR / Late Night 
Refreshment  

The supply of hot food or hot drink to 
members of the public, or a section of the 
public, on or from any premises, whether for 
consumption on or off the premises, between 
the hours of 23:00nrs and 05:00hrs. 
 

Licensable Activity Sale by retail of alcohol.   
Supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or 
to the order of a member.  
Provision of Regulated Entertainment 
Provision of Late Night Refreshment 
 

Model conditions A pool of conditions from which, only those 
that are appropriate and proportional to the 
individual premises and the immediate vicinity 
may be drawn. 
 

Notice A writing communicating information or 
warning. 
 

Objection Notice Where a Chief Officer of Police is satisfied that 
allowing the premises to be used in 
accordance with a Temporary Event Notice 
would undermine the crime prevention 
objective, he must give an objection notice 
stating the reasons why. 
 

Permitted Temporary 
Activity 

A Licensable Activity is a permitted temporary 
activity if it is carried on in accordance with a 
Temporary Event Notice, provided the 
acknowledgement of notice and notification of 
police are met, the Temporary Event Notice is 
not withdrawn and no Counter Notice is given. 

 
Person 

 
Includes a business or partnership with regard 
to premises application. 
 

Premises Licence A Licence granted under the ‘Act’ in respect of 
any premises which authorises the premises 
to be used for one or more Licensable 
activities. 

Page 73



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
46 

 
Prescribed Prescribed by regulations. 

 
Personal Licence  A Licence granted by a Licensing Authority to 

an individual and authorises that individual to 
supply alcohol, or authorise the supply of 
alcohol, in accordance with a Premises 
Licence. 
 

Premises Includes any place, vehicle, vessel or 
moveable structure. 

  
Regulations Those made by the Secretary of State. 

 
Regulated Entertainment Entertainment provided to any extent for 

members of the public or a section of the 
public or exclusively for members of a club, 
which is a qualifying club in relation to the 
provision or regulated entertainment, or for 
members of such a club and their guests. 
 

Responsible Authorities With regard to parts 3 and 4 of the Act the 
Responsible Authorities are, Chief of Police, 
the Fire Authority and the Licensing Authority. 
 

Representations A statement of objection or support in respect 
of an application.  
 

Repetitious In response to a review application, repetition 
of a representation made on an application for 
a licence or review without a reasonable 
interval having elapsed. 
 

Resident Permanent inhabitant in the Borough. 
 

Review A Responsible Authority or interested party 
such as a resident living in the vicinity of the 
premises may ask the Licensing authority to 
review a Licence because of problems arising 
at the premises in connection with any of the 
four Licensing Objectives. 
 

Relevant Licensing Authority Generally the Licensing Authority in whose 
area the premises are situated (but separate 
definitions in parts 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the Act. 
 

Page 74



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 Classification: Unrestricted 

 
47 

R18 A film classification by the BBFC or the Local 
Authority as only for viewing by persons aged 
18 years or over who are members of a 
properly constituted club or their guests who 
are aged 18 or over. 
 

Statutory Guidance Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to 
the Licensing Authorities on the discharge of 
their functions. 
 

Scheme of Delegation Systematic arrangement for authorising 
subordinates to make certain decisions. 
 

Statutory Instruments As well as Acts of Parliament UK law is made 
through Statutory Instruments (SI’s) (also 
referred to as delegated or secondary 
legislation).  These are laws written by a 
Government Minister, exercising legislative 
powers delegated to him or her by an Act of 
Parliament.  Some require approval by 
Parliament. 
 

Temporary Event Notice 
(TEN) 

A notice of proposal to use premises for one 
or more Licensable Activities during a period 
not exceeding 96 hours given to the Relevant 
Licensing Authority. 

  
Vexatious Lacking sufficient grounds for action and 

seeking only to annoy the defendant. 
 

Vicinity of premises 
 
 
 
 
 
Zoning 

“In the vicinity of” the Licensed Premises – 
geographically within the neighbourhood of 
the premises. This is ultimately a matter of fact 
to be decided by the licensing authority in 
each individual case.  
 
Fixed trading hours within a designated area. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Part I 
Item No: 10 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 7 JANUARY 2020 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Malcolm Cowan and 

will be seconded by Councillor Helen Quenet:- 
 

“This Council resolves:- 

 to require all public firework displays within the local authority boundaries 
to be advertised in advance of the event, allowing residents to take 
precautions for their animals and vulnerable people 

 to actively promote a public awareness campaign about the impact of 
fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable people–including the 
precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks 

 to write to the UK Government urging them to introduce legislation to limit 
the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90dB for those sold to the public 
for private displays 

 to encourage local suppliers of fireworks to stock ‘quieter’ fireworks for 
public display.” 

 
2. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Kieran Thorpe and 

will be seconded by Councillor Glyn Hayes:- 
 

“This Council notes that in November 2018, on the issue of Rail Fare increases, 
Welwyn Hatfield’s MP said “Given this year’s lamentable performance there’s 
never been a more appropriate time to freeze fares. 
 

For the year ahead I think that passengers should be given a much-needed break 
from higher prices, in recognition of being so badly let down by the railway over 
the past few months.” 
  

This Council notes that regardless, in January 2019, fares increased by 3.1% 
  

A survey conducted by Which? Magazine asked commuters to rate the quality of 
rail franchisees. Great Northern and Thameslink both scored in the bottom 5. 
 

According to figures from Great Northern themselves, customer satisfaction has 
not risen at all between spring 2018 and spring 2019, their latest published 
figures. 
  

This Council notes that despite this, at the start of this year, rail fares have risen 
again - on average by a further 2.7%  
  

This Council resolves to write to the Minister for Transport, Welwyn Hatfield’s MP, 
expressing our concern that rail fares have again risen for Welwyn Hatfield 
commuters, without them seeing significant improvement on “lamentable 
performance” - and encourages him to act to improve the performance of 
franchise companies, rather than using his position to threaten the working rights 
of their staff.”   
 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 10



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

3. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Paul Zukowskyj and 
will be seconded by Councillor Siobhan Elam:- 

 

“This council is concerned by the number of complaints received by members, 
about the level of maintenance of the council's housing stock. 
 
As this council's most valuable asset, not to mention the welfare of the residents 
who call them home, the level and nature of the complaints raises serious 
concerns. 
 
This council therefore asks the executive member, in consultation with officers, to 
bring forward proposals to council to firstly identify areas of concern, and then to 
address them.” 

Page 78



- 1 - 

 

Part I 
Item No:  
Main author: Alison Marston 
For Resolution 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 7 JANUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report considers the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel (IRP) at their meeting on the 4 November 2019. 

1.2 The Chief Executive’s report and the minutes of the IRP meeting on 4 November 
2019 are set out as background papers to this report (Appendix A and B).  

2 Recommendation 

2.1 Council accepts the recommendation of the Independent Remuneration Panel and 
approves the proposed level of Members’ Basic and Special Responsibility 
Allowances as set out in Appendix C, payable with effect from 1 July 2019. 

2.2 Council accepts the recommendation of the Independent Remuneration Panel and 
approves the proposed increase to the Care Allowance Payments. 

2.3 Council accepts the recommendation for officers to carry out a full review of all 
SRAs for the financial year 2020/21. 

2.4 Council notes that a recruitment process will be commenced for new members to 
the IRP. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Panel’s recommendations are for levels of allowances to increase in line with 
the national agreement for staff (an increase of 2%). 

3.2 Special consideration was given to the level of allowances payable to opposition 
group leaders in order to more fairly reflect political balance of the parties. A new 
calculation is proposed where each Opposition Group Leader receives an 
allowance calculated from 50% of the basic allowance plus £225 for each group 
member. 

3.3 In light of the current period of no overall control, a supplement is suggested to 
reflect the additional work currently undertaken by the opposition leaders. 

3.4 There are currently 3 members forming the IRP. One member of the IRP has 
indicated their intention to resign following this latest review and it will therefore be 
necessary to recruit a new member. In any event, it would be good practice to 
commence a fresh recruitment exercise, in view that the current appointments 
were made some years ago. 

3.5 Once the recruitment process has been completed, Council will be required to 
make these appointments.  

Page 79

Agenda Item 11



- 2 - 

Implications 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 The council must set members’ allowances in accordance with the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989  and the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. Before an authority makes or amends a 
scheme, it has a legal duty to have regard to the recommendations made by its 
IRP. 

4.2 The IRP must form at least 3 members, none of whom is a councillor of the 
authority nor would be so disqualified from being a councillor. 

4.3 The council must ensure that any IRP recommendations and agreed members’ 
allowance schemes are duly publicised in accordance with the statutory 
requirements. 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 It is proposed that the level of basic allowance and special responsibility 
allowances (SRAs) are increased by 2%, in line with the national agreement for 
staff. An equivalent increase is proposed for the Care Allowance. 

5.2 The Opposition Group Leaders’ allowances are recalculated with each now using 
the same method. With the optional supplement included this would see an 
increase for both on last year’s allowance. 

5.3 As in previous years, some members hold more than one office: the scheme 
provides that they only receive the highest of the allowances due. 

5.4 If the proposed increases are agreed this will be covered from current budgets. 
Once agreed, the Members’ Allowances Budget for 2020/21 will be set sufficiently. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 None 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 None 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 None 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 None 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 None 

  

Page 80



- 3 - 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority “Our 
Council”, and specifically to the achievement of promoting equality and fairness; 
supporting our councillors with their professional development so they may better 
work for, and represent, local communities. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

1. Chief Executive’s report to the IRP dated November 2019 (Appendix A). 
2. Minutes of the IRP meeting held on 4 November 2019 (Appendix B). 
3. Proposed new Members’ Allowances Scheme and Care Allowances (Appendix C) 

 
 
Rob Bridge 
Chief Executive 
November 2019 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Item No: 2 
Main author: Alison Marston 
For Recommendation 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL – 4 NOVEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

WELWYN HATFIELD MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1. This report seeks recommendations from the Independent Remuneration Panel 
on a review of the level of allowances to be paid to Members for 2019/20 with 
effect from 1 July 2019. 

2. Financial Implications 

2.1. The current level of payments set out in the Members’ Allowance Scheme for 
2018/19 is attached at Appendix A. It is proposed that the level of basic 
allowance and special responsibility allowances (SRAs) are increased by 2%, in 
line with the national agreement for staff. Additional consideration is to be given 
to the SRA for Opposition Group Leaders, further explained in section 5 (below). 

2.2. Currently, four members hold more than one office of special responsibility and 
receive the higher allowance only.  

2.3. There has so far been no cost incurred from the care allowance as this has not 
yet been taken up by any Members since its introduction last year. In view of this 
it is expected that if there is a cost from a limited take up it will also be able to be 
contained within the existing budget. 

3. Background  

3.1. Since the review by the Panel of the level of allowances for 2013/14, the 
convention to recommend annual increases in line with the National Joint Council 
for Local Government Services annual employee pay award has been adopted 
and this approach had been agreed by the Council. For 2019/20 this was 2%. 

3.2. Before then allowances had been frozen since 2008/09.      

3.3. In 2016 the Panel revisited the increases in allowances recommended by the 
review previously undertaken by an independent consultant in 2009 and agreed 
increases to move towards the Hertfordshire median rates.   

3.4. Last year, however, following consideration, the Council agreed not to accept the 
increase of 2% recommended by the Panel so no change was made and 
allowances remained at the 2017/18 amounts. 

4. Care Allowance 

4.1. The Panel had previously agreed with the recommendation by the independent 
consultant’s review to introduce a care allowance which could be claimed against 
the cost of child or dependent care incurred by Members whilst attending 
meetings.  

Page 83

demserv_am
Text Box
APPENDIX A 



- 2 - 

4.2. This recommendation had not been taken up, but at the request of Members it 
was re-considered by the Panel last year and introduced as part of the scheme 
for 2018/19. 

4.3. No claims were submitted by Members for the payment of a Care allowance 
during the 2018/19 Municipal Year. This will remain in place and the uptake 
monitored. It is proposed that the rates for this allowance should also be uplifted 
by 2% in 2019/20 the same as the other allowances. The current rates are 
attached at Appendix B and the proposed rates attached at Appendix C.  

5. Leaders of Opposition Groups’ Special Responsibility Allowances 

5.1. In 2016 the Panel as part of its review agreed that changes should be made to 
the SRAs for Opposition Group Leaders. The SRAs which had been the same as 
that for a Cabinet Member were replaced by ones which were calculated on the 
basis of 75% of basic allowance plus a per capita payment of £125 for each 
Group Member for the first Opposition Group Leader (Labour) and 25% of basic 
allowance and a per capita payment of £125 for each Group Member for the 
second Opposition Group Leader (Liberal Democrat).   

5.2. At that time there were 15 Labour Group Members and 5 Liberal Democrat 
Group Members. Now that the figures are 13 and 12 respectively an option is for 
both payments to be calculated on the same basis to align them to the changed 
Group membership numbers.  

5.3. Officers have considered different methods of calculating these figures to reflect 
both the political balance and the amount of work required in these positions. 
Examples will be discussed with the panel for consideration. 

5.4. Given the added complexities of working in a no overall control environment, an 
optional supplement reflective of the additional work of the Opposition Group 
Leaders during such times is included. 

6. Recommendations     

6.1. That Members’ Allowances including the Care Allowance be increased by 2% 
with effect from 1 July 2019 in line with this year’s national agreement for staff. 

6.2. That the current Care allowance remain in place and the uptake monitored. 

6.3. That the basis of calculation of SRAs for Opposition Group Members be looked 
at as part of the review.  

6.4. That the Panel’s recommendations be reported for consideration to the Council 
meeting on 25 November 2018. 

 
Rob Bridge  
Chief Executive 
October 2019 

Page 84

demserv_am_1
Text Box
APPENDIX A 



Appendix A 
 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 
 

1. ENQUIRIES 
 
1.1. Enquiries about allowances may be addressed to Graham Seal, Governance 

Services Manager (01707) 357444. 
 
2. BASIC ALLOWANCE 
 
2.1. Basic allowance is payable at a flat rate to all elected Members of the Council. 
 
2.2. If a councillor is elected to or leaves the Council during the year, basic 

allowance will be paid pro-rata for the proportion of the year during which the 
councillor has been a serving Member of the Council. 

 
2.3. With effect from 1 July 2018, basic allowance will be paid at the rate of £5,051 

per annum. Payment will be made in monthly instalments of £420.92. 
 
3. SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE (SRA) 
 
3.1. The Council has authorised the following payments in addition to Members’ 

basic allowance: - 
 

 Per Annum (£) 
2018/19 

 

Monthly (£) 
2018/19 

Leader of the Council 15,152 1,262.66 
Deputy Leader 10,605 883.75 
Cabinet Member 9,676 806.33 
Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny Committees 4,499 374.92 
Chairman of Development Management Committee 5,051 420.92 
Chairman of Hackney Carriage Committee 3,884 323.66 
Chairman of Cabinet Panel 3,884 323.66 
Chairman of Audit Committee 3,801 316.75 
Chairman of Liquor and Regulated Entertainment 

Licensing Committee 
 

3,884 
 

323.66 
Leader of First Opposition Group 5,739 478.25 
Leader of Second Opposition Group 2,288 190.66 
Chairman of Standards Committee 2,040 170.00 
Mayor 6,277 N/A 
Deputy Mayor 1,570 N/A 

 

Page 85

demserv_am_2
Text Box
APPENDIX A 



Appendix B 
 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

CARE ALOWANCE 
2018/19 

 
 

This allowance may be claimed against the cost of child (up to age of 
14 years) or dependent adult care that a Member may incur whilst 
they are on official duties defined as attendance at meetings of the 
Council, Committees (to include Cabinet, Committees, Panels and 

Boards) and Outside Bodies where the Member is the Council’s 
appointed representative. 

 
 

The following rates may be claimed:- 
 

Childcare – Maximum of £7.83 per hour 
 

Dependent Care – Maximum of £11.83 per hour 
 
 

A maximum of 20 hours per month may be claimed.  Claims must be 
supported by a valid receipt.  Payments to other members of the 

household will be excluded.  Claims should be made to the 
Governance Services Manager monthly on the official claim form 

provided. 

Page 86

demserv_am_3
Text Box
APPENDIX A 



- 1 - 
Independent Remuneration Panel 
4 November 2019 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL* held on 
Monday 4 November 2019 at 1.00pm at the Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City.  
 
* Reporting to Council 
 
PRESENT: C. Novelli 

P.Raynsford 
D.Tabraham-Palmer 

 

OFFICIALS Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) (N.Long)  
PRESENT: Governance Services Manager (G.Seal) 
 Principal Governance Officer (A.Marston) 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN: 
 

The Panel continued with the previously agreed arrangement not to appoint a 
Chairman. 

 
2. WELWYN HATFIELD MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME: 
 

2.1. Review of the Scheme 
 

The report of the Chief Executive sought recommendations from the Independent 
Remuneration Panel on a review of the level of allowances to be paid to Members 
for 2019/20 with effect from 1 July 2019 including the rate of the Care Allowance. 
Additional consideration was given to the SRA for Opposition Group Leaders 
given that previously there were different calculations used for the primary and 
secondary opposition. The current no overall control environment and the added 
complexities that this brings to the opposition was also taken into account. 

(a) Members. Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances 
In line with the national agreement for staff, the report proposed the level 
of basic allowance and special responsibility allowances to be increased 
by 2%. 
As in previous years, there are some members who hold more than one 
office and the scheme provides that they only receive the highest of the 
allowances due.  
The panel briefly discussed the special responsibility allowances for 
Chairmen of the different committees and decided that these should be 
looked at in more detail next year following the scrutiny review. The 
workload entailed within each special responsibility should be reflected in 
the SRA received. 

(b) Care Allowance   
No claims have been submitted by Members for the payment of a Care 
Allowance since this was introduced. It was agreed that this scheme 
should continue and the same 2% increase as the Members’ Basic and 
Special Responsibility Allowances be applied.  

Page 87

demserv_am_4
Text Box
APPENDIX B



- 2 - 
Independent Remuneration Panel 
4 November 2019 
 

(c) Opposition Group Leaders 
Since 2016, the SRA for the first Opposition Group Leader has been 
calculated on the basis of 75% of basic allowance plus a per capita 
payment of £125 for each Group Member, with the second Opposition 
Group Leader calculated as 25% of basic allowance and a per capita 
payment of £125 for each Group Member. 

The panel felt appropriate that as the number of group members for the 
two opposition groups currently only differs by one that the two group 
leaders’ allowances should be calculated in the same way. 

The new calculation is designed to reflect more fairly the political balance 
of the parties and also includes a supplement reflective of the additional 
work of the opposition group leaders are currently undertaking during the 
no overall control period. 

Each opposition leader allowance is calculated on the basis of 50% of 
basic allowance, plus a per capita payment of £250 for each group 
member (with an additional 10% of the basic allowance as the 
abovementioned supplement). 

 
The Panel’s recommendations would be submitted to the Council meeting on 7 
January 2020 for consideration. 

The Panel and Officers recorded thanks to Christine Novelli for all her hard work 
over the years that she has sat on the panel as she is now standing down from 
this role. 

Recommendations 

(1) That the Panel recommends to the Council that the proposed level of 
Members’ Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances to be paid with 
effect from 1 July 2019 be as set out in Appendix A attached and that no 
other changes be made. 

 
(2) That the Panel recommends to the Council the proposed new level of Care 

Allowance payments as set out in Appendix B. 
 

(3) That a full review of all SRAs is carried out in 2020,  
 
Meeting ended 4.15pm 

          AM 
 

Page 88

demserv_am_5
Text Box
APPENDIX B



WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

1. ENQUIRIES

1.1. Enquiries about allowances may be addressed to Graham Seal, Governance Services 
Manager (01707) 357444. 

2. BASIC ALLOWANCE
2.1. Basic allowance is payable at a flat rate to all elected Members of the Council. 
2.2. If a councillor is elected to or leaves the Council during the year, basic allowance will 

be paid pro-rata for the proportion of the year during which the councillor has been a 
serving Member of the Council. 

2.3. With effect from 1 July 2019, basic allowance will be paid at the rate of £5,152 per 
annum. Payment will be made in monthly instalments of £429.33. 

3. SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE (SRA)
3.1. The Council has authorised the following payments in addition to Members’ basic 

allowance: 

Per Annum (£) 
2019/20 

Monthly (£) 
2019/20 

Leader of the Council 15455 1,287.92 

Deputy Leader 10817 901.42 

Cabinet Member 9870 822.46 

Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny Committees 4589 382.42 

Chairman of Development Management Committee 5152 429.33 

Chairman of Hackney Carriage Committee 3962 330.14 

Chairman of Cabinet Panel 3962 330.14 

Chairman of Audit Committee 3877 323.08 

Chairman of Liquor and Regulated 
 Entertainment Licensing Committee 

3962 330.14 

Leader of First Opposition Group 6016 501.33 

Leader of Second Opposition Group 5791 482.58 

Chairman of Standards Committee 2080 173.40 

Mayor 6402 N/A 

Deputy Mayor 1601 N/A 

Page 89

demserv_am_6
Text Box
APPENDIX C



WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

CARE ALLOWANCE 
 
 

This allowance may be claimed against the cost of child (up to age of 14 
years) or dependent adult care that a Member may incur whilst they are 

on official duties defined as attendance at evening meetings of the 
Council, Committees (to include Cabinet, Committees, Panels and 

Boards) and Outside Bodies where the Member is the Council’s 
appointed representative. 

 
 

The following rates may be claimed:- 
 

Childcare - Maximum of £7.99 per hour 
 

Dependent Care – Maximum of £12.07 per hour 
 
 

A maximum of 20 hours per month may be claimed. Claims must be 
supported by a valid receipt. Payments to other members of the 

household will be excluded. Claims should be made to the Governance 
Services Manager monthly on the official claim form provided. 

Page 90

demserv_am_7
Text Box
APPENDIX C



Classification: Unrestricted 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part  
Item No.  
Main Author: Rob Bridge 
Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 7 JANUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND ACTING RETURNING OFFICER 
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS 
 
 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 For electoral purposes, the Council is required to divide each parliamentary 

constituency in the area into polling districts for parliamentary elections and to 
designate polling places for each of those polling districts.  Under the 
Representation of the People Act 1983, all Polling Districts, Places and 
Stations should be reviewed on a regular basis. 

 
1.2 The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 introduced a change 

to the timing of the review of polling arrangements and it is required that the 
next review must be started and completed between 1 October 2018 and 31 
January 2020 (inclusive) and every five years thereafter. 

 
1.3 This report informs the Council of the responses received to the recent 

consultation exercise carried out and recommends that in the light of the very 
few comments received, no amendments be made to the current 
arrangements, which are detailed in the Appendix to this report. 
 

2. Recommendation(s) 
 
2.1  That Council notes the small number of responses received to the 

consultation and agrees, in the light of these, to make minor amendments to 
the current arrangements for polling districts, places and polling stations as 
detailed in the Appendix to this report. 

 
3. Financial Implication(s) 

 
3.1 There would be notional additional costs for the one of the two newly created 

polling stations, although a saving in the other as the hire fee is less than the 
existing station.  

 
4. Link to Corporate Priorities 

 
4.1 I can confirm that the subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate 

Priority. “Our Council – ensure fair and open access to our services for all 
members of our diverse community”.  

 
5. Legal Implication(s) 
 
5.1 Reviews of Polling Places, Polling Districts and Polling Stations are carried 

out in accordance with the requirements of the Electoral Registration and 
Administration Act 2013. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 12



Classification: Unrestricted 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
6. Climate Change Implication(s)   

 
6.1 None specifically as a result of this report. 

 
7. Risk Management Implication 

 
7.1 There are no risk management implications arising directly as a result of this 

report.  Risk assessments are carried out for all polling places and polling 
stations on a regular basis to ensure that they are safe and fit for purpose. 

 
8. Explanation 

 
8.1 Each local authority in Great Britain is responsible for reviewing polling 

districts and polling places in its area on a regular basis. The Council must 
complete its review by 31 January 2020. 

 
8.2 Responsibility for deciding how many polling stations are required for each 

polling place lies with the Acting Returning Officer who must allocate electors 
to the polling stations in such a manner that is most convenient. 

 
8.3 The last review of polling districts, places and stations in Welwyn Hatfield was 

agreed at Council on 24 November 2014. 
 
8.4 Public notice of the current review was given on 13 August 2019 at which 

representations were invited from key stakeholders, interested groups and 
organisations or individuals on the appropriateness of the polling places and 
any other comments on the scheme in general.  The deadline for submission 
of comments was 1 October 2019. 

 
8.5 There have been seven responses to the consultation which are included in 

the Appendix under the respective wards: 
 

8.6 Christ the King Church Hall and Holy Family Primary School – Haldens and 
Welwyn East Wards 
 

A response has been received referring to avoiding an increase in the polling 
stations for these wards and a suggestion that the polling stations at Christ 
the King Hall and Holy Family Primary School be combined. It is not intended 
or proposed that there be an increase in polling stations for these Wards. In 
any event, Christ the King Church Hall is in Welwyn East Ward and The Holy 
Family Primary School is in Haldens Ward. To combine the two Wards would 
be unnecessary and would cause confusion for electors.  

 
The new headteacher of Holy Family School no longer wishes to have The 
Holy Family Primary School as a polling station. This is due to having to close 
the school to the children. To accommodate this request, fortunately an 
alternative polling station has been found just down the road to the School 
and in the same Ward, namely Haldens Sports and Social Club Margery 
Wood Welwyn Garden City AL7 1UN. This is far cheaper to hire, 
accommodating and is accessible to all electors including those who are 

Page 92



Classification: Unrestricted 

Classification: Unrestricted 

disabled and has ample parking. It is therefore proposed to use the Haldens 
Sports and Social Club in place of The Holy Family Primary School. 
 
A further response has been received suggesting a more centralised polling 
station in the Haldens Ward. It is not certain which of the polling station is 
referred to of the 3 polling stations in the Ward, but currently, it has not been 
possible to find an alternative centralised polling station, but this will be kept 
under review. 

 
Ludwick Family Club – Howlands Ward 

 

It has been suggested that the access to the Ludwick Family Club is 

hazardous for people with disabilities with the tempory ramp being too short to 

allow wheelchair access and that there are no handrails. The station has been 

under consideration arising out of some electors reporting that they have been 

confused where to vote with another polling station – Douglas Tilbe being 

virtually next door. After further inspecting both polling stations it would 

appear to be sensible to have two polling stations within the one building, 

namely in Douglas Tilbe as this is accessible to all electors including those 

who are disabled and does have permanent ramps to the building and wide 

entrances to accommodate larger wheelchairs. Further, the use of these 

premises as a combined station is far cheaper. It is therefore proposed that 

Douglas Tilbe will be used as a combined station in place of Ludwick Family 

Club 

 

King George V Community Centre – Hollybush Ward 

 

There have been three responses concerning this polling station. The first is 

supportive of this polling station as they find it easy to access with ample 

parking and wish for its continued use. 

 

The second response states that this is a poor location for anyone on foot and 

in the evening. This has not been a problem before now and given that there 

have been no specific details as to why this should be a problem whether on 

foot or in the evening – there is sufficient lighting in or around the polling 

station and carpark – there is no current intention to change this as a station.  

 

The final response on the contrary has stated that this station along with 

others they have used have always been excellent; always staffed by 

pleasant helpful people; always clean and tidy and having good access. 

 

Howe Dell Community Hall and St Johns Youth Centre – Hatfield Villages 

Ward, Hatfield West Ward, Welham Green Ward and Hatfield South Ward 

 

A response has been received questioning using Beales Hotel (in place of 

Howe Dell Community Hall as part of a joint station) and St Johns Youth 

Centre and to consider continuing to use Howe Dell Community Hall along 

with The Jim McDonald Centre. 

 

Page 93



Classification: Unrestricted 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Before The Comet or Ramada Hotel closed down for renovation some 2 years 

ago, this Hotel was used as a polling station and Howe Dell Community Hall 

has since been used as a joint station. It had been hoped to return to The 

Comet after the renovations to avoid those electors in the south of the ward 

having to travel too far, but this has not been possible for two main reasons. 

The first is that there are only two possible rooms to use, but both of them, 

whilst sufficient in size and would meet accessible to all electors including 

those who are disabled, contain large unmovable board room tables taking up 

most of the space available and as such would not be able to be adopted for 

use as a polling station. In addition one of the rooms is upstairs and 

accessible through a maze of corridors or lifts. The second problem is that it is 

only possible to use the carpark having obtained a token from reception. 

 

Extensive enquiries have been made for an alternative polling station. Jim 

McDonald Centre would be too far for electors to travel and would have to 

pass the existing station – Howe Dell Community Centre to vote. However 

Beales Hatfield Hotel meets all the criteria for a polling station is accessible to 

all electors including those who are disabled and has adequate free parking. 

There would be no additional cost. 

 
9. Equality and Diversity 

 
9.1 One of the key reasons for carrying out a review of the polling places and 

polling stations is to ensure that they continue to be convenient to all electors 
and are accessible for disabled persons. 

 
9.2 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was not completed because this report 

does not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the 
development of new service-related policies. 

 
10. Background Papers 

 
10.1 Reviews of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations – Guidance 

from the Electoral Commission 
10.2 Consultation documents and responses 

Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 
Representation of the People Act 1983 
Electoral Administration Act 2006 
The Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) 
Regulations 2006 

 
Name of author:        Rob Bridge 
Title:                          Chief Executive and Acting Returning Officer 
Date:                         20th December 2019 

 
 

Page 94


	Agenda
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8a Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21
	Localised council tax support

	8b Duty of Care Enforcement for Fly-Tipping
	EOSCDutyofCareFPNSept2019

	8c Service Standards for Regulatory Work
	7c - EOSCSept2019RegServiceStandardsReport

	9a Licensing Policy
	Licensing Policy Sept  2019
	Licensing_Policy_2020-2025 updated

	10 NOTICES OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16
	11 MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME
	11a - Appendix A
	Review of Members Allowances IRP Report 2019 (005)
	Appx A Members' Allowances 2018
	MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME

	Appx B Care Allownance 2018
	ADPD8E8.tmp
	WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
	1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN:
	2. WELWYN HATFIELD MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME:
	(c) Opposition Group Leaders
	MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME


	11b - Appendix B
	ADP7DA7.tmp
	WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
	1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN:
	2. WELWYN HATFIELD MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME:
	(c) Opposition Group Leaders
	MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME


	11c - Appendix C
	MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME


	12 REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS



